

MASTER CONTRACT

BETWEEN

SULPHUR SPRINGS DISTRICT TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

AND

SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

Term: July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 Adopted: January 17, 2024 for the 2023/2024 School Year

SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 27000 Weyerhaeuser Way Santa Clarita, California 91351

and

SULPHUR SPRINGS DISTRICT TEACHERS ASSOCIATION CTA/NEA - Certificated Employee Exclusive Representative Agreement

WITNESSETH:

This is an agreement made and entered into this 14th day of December 2022, between the SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT (hereafter "District") and the SULPHUR SPRINGS DISTRICT TEACHERS ASSOCIATION, CTA/NEA (hereafter "Association").

Table Of Contents

Article I: Recognition	3
Article II: Definition	3
Article III: Work Year	3
Article IV: Hours	4
Article V: Salary	5
Professional Growth Guidelines	5
Credit for Professional Work Experience	7
Additional Stipends	8
Extended School Year	g
Mentor Stipends	g
On Site Mentors	g
Salary Classification Requirements - Bilingual Compensation	g
One Time Stipends	10
Incorrect Salary Placement	10
After School Work Rate (Non-District related)	
Article VI: Employee Benefits	
Article VII: Early Retirement Benefit Program And/Or State Teachers Retirement System Early Retirement Program ("Golden Handshake Incentive")	
Article VIII: Grievance	
Informal Procedure	
Formal Procedure	
Article IX: Class Size	
Article X: Safety Conditions.	
Article XI: Transfer	
Article XII: Leaves.	
Bereavement Leave	
Industrial Accident And Illness Leave	
Judicial And Official Appearance Leave	
Legislative Leave	
Personal Nessesitut esse	
Personal Necessity Leave	
Sick Leave.	
Article XIII: Evaluation Procedures	
Article XIV: Payroll Deductions & Organizational Security, Maintenance Of Membership, And Dues Deduction	
Article XV: Savings Provision	
Article XVI: Extended Summer School For Special Education	
Article XVII: Summer School	
Article XVIII: Peer Assistance Program	
Article XIX: Personnel Files	
Article XX: Complaints	
Article XXI: Concerted Activity	
Article XXII: Conclusion Of Meeting And Negotiation	
Article XXIII: Term	
Attachment A: Recognition Agreement	
Attachment C: Voluntary Benefits	
Attachment F: MOU Job Sharing	
Attachment G: MOU Job Sharing	52
MOU: Moderate/Severe Special Education Teachers	55
MOU: Learning Support Teachers 2024/2025	56
MOU: Scholars at Home 2024/2025	57

Article I: Recognition

The District confirms its recognition of the Association as the exclusive representative for that unit of employees recognized pursuant to Attachment A.

Article II: Definition

The District and Association agree that the following definitions shall be utilized in the interpretation of this Agreement.

Employee - One who works for the District and is represented by the exclusive representative, as defined by Government Code Section 3540 (hereafter "exclusive representative").

Employer - District who employs the services of those employees represented by the exclusive bargaining unit.

Immediate Family - The mother, father, verified foster or court appointed person/s acting as parent, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, of the employee or of the employee's spouse. The spouse, registered domestic partner, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, brother, or sister. Any relative living in the employee's household.

Immediate Supervisor - A line or staff officer of the District to whom an employee represented by the exclusive bargaining agent or unit is immediately accountable.

Position Classification - (Class) - A group of positions similar in duties and responsibilities that bear the same descriptive title and require substantially the same requirements of education, experience, knowledge and ability.

Student Minimum Day - For the purpose of this contract a student minimum day will consist of 285 minutes including lunch but not less than 240 instructional minutes for grades TK-6. Effective July 1, 2018, for the purpose of this contract, a student minimum day will consist of 240 minutes including lunch but not less than 205 instructional minutes for grades TK-6.

Article III: Work Year

The District retains the right to establish the work year for all employees in order to meet the educational goals and objectives of the District. Employees shall serve one hundred eighty (180) instructional days, one (1) orientation day for those new to the District, three (3) professional development days, one (1) professional responsibility day and two (2) parent conference days, a total of one hundred eighty-seven days for new staff and one hundred eighty-six days for returning staff.

Article IV: Hours

- 4.1 The work week for a full-time employee shall be thirty-seven and one-half (37.5) hours, to be rendered in units of seven and one-half (7.5) consecutive hours of school based service per day, inclusive of not less than a forty (40) minute duty free lunch period except when the site administrator declares an inclement weather situation, then the duty-free lunch period shall be thirty (minutes) in length. On minimum days the duty-free lunch period shall be thirty-five minutes in length. The seven and one-half (7.5) hours of school-based service shall be structured, directed or modified by the immediate supervisor in conformity with the employee's job description. Student minutes for grades TK through six will be equal.
- 4.2 Additionally, employees covered by this Agreement may be required to render reasonable additional hours of required service associated with the duties directly related to their assignment. Any full-time teacher providing a half day kindergarten or transitional kindergarten instructional program shall be required to render no more than one hundred (100) minutes of service outside of their assignment. The teacher shall be available for assistance or assignment in the instructional program. The one hundred (100) minutes will be at the direction of the site principal.
- 4.3 There will be eleven minimum days to occur on Back to School Night, Open House, two Goal Setting Conference Days, two Parent Conference days and one minimum day at the end of the year. The remaining four days will be calendared throughout the year. These days are for teacher preparation.
- 4.4 Any additional hours of required service beyond the seven and one-half (7.5) hour workday shall not result in more than an eight and one half (8.5) hour workday and shall be limited to one day per week. Ordinarily, additional hours of required service shall be performed on Wednesdays. Occasionally, circumstances may require that a day other than Wednesday be substituted. In such a case, at least one (1) week advance notice shall be provided to the employees. In a 4-week cycle, 5 of the 10 Wednesday early release hours may be scheduled by site administrators for purposes of staff development, grade level collaboration, and/or staff meetings. The remaining 5 hours will be available to support teachers in fulfilling their professional responsibilities at individual teacher discretion. Parent Conference, Goal Setting, Back to School and Open House weeks count neither as an administration directed day nor as a teacher directed Wednesday. The Fall Goal Setting Conferences will be held within the first 3 months of school. Spring Parent Conferences will be held after the end of the second trimester. Unit members have the responsibility to invite and encourage all parents to Fall Goal Setting and Spring Conferences. Parents will have the option to meet or, if the parent determines that he/she does not need a conference, decline to meet for Spring Conferences. Report cards for students whose parents choose not to attend conferences or are unable to attend, will be sent home with the student.
- 4.5 Each school year, unit members will be provided one (1) Release Day for which a substitute teacher will be provided to cover their class ("Release Day"). Half of such a Release Day will be Principal directed for tier 1 meetings, and the other half will be designated as teacher collaboration time. The District will provide substitute coverage only for classroom teachers on these Release Days. The scheduling of these Release Days will be decided by the Principals, in consultation with the teachers being released. Release Days may be used in a single day or divided into partial Release Days at the Principal's discretion. If subs are not available, the District will make a good faith effort to reschedule the Release Day. Unit members shall not be entitled to the grievance procedure of this agreement if a Release Day is not able to be rescheduled during the school year.

Article V: Salary

The District and the Association agree that the employees represented by the unit shall be compensated on a 12-month basis in accordance with the salary schedules in Attachment "B."

Unit members understand that July's paycheck is an advancement of funds based on the understanding the employee will work the entire school year. If an employee does not work the entire school year, a portion of July's pay may be required to be reimbursed based on when the employee separates from employment.

Professional Growth Guidelines

1. Upper division and graduate units may be applied to advancement on the salary schedule or may be compensated in the form of reimbursement for tuition plus a stipend of sixty dollars (\$60) per semester unit.

A Pre-Approval Plan must be submitted to and approved by the Superintendent or his/her designee for all upper division and graduate units where staff will be requesting reimbursement for tuition and stipend. Plan must be comprised of Education courses leading to an advanced degree related to teaching skills of subject matter likely to be taught by the individual. An employee is entitled to this provision once within their service to the District.

- a. Units will either be posted toward salary schedule credit or tuition reimbursed upon receipt of a written request by the employee with official transcript of verification of completion from an accredited educational institution. (American Association of Schools and Colleges, or regional affiliates.) An official transcript is one that bears the official seal of the college and/or original signature of the registrar, or the registrar's designee. Changes will not be made at a later date once salary credit has been given or reimbursement provided.
- b. Salary schedule credit that results in a change of column shall:
 - Be verified in the Superintendent's Office with official transcripts prior to October 1. This will be paid on the check following the October 1 verification, not be retroactive.
 - ii. Be verified in the Superintendent's Office with official transcripts prior to February 1. This will be paid on the check following the February 1 verification, not to be retroactive.
- c. Credit shall be granted for any course in which a "C" or better grade is earned. (Or "pass" if a pass/fail system is used.)
- d. Credit on the salary schedule will be given in terms of semester units or a fraction (2/3rd) thereof. One semester unit is considered to be the equivalent of fifteen (15) hours.

- 2. Any unit member may apply units earned through any CTC accredited credentialing program for the purpose of column advancement on the salary schedule, if those units meet the following requirements:
 - a. The coursework was completed after the unit member earned a Bachelor's Degree.
 - b. The units must be upper division (300 or above).
 - c. The units must be verified according to SSDTA Master Contract Article V.1.b.
 - d. Credit will be given for courses according to SSDTA Master Contract Article V.1.c and V.1.d.
- 3. Lower division courses will be compensated by means of reimbursement for tuition.
 - Education courses and those courses related to teaching skills or subject matter likely to be taught by the individual will automatically be approved and compensation authorized.
 - Compensation may be approved for courses not directly related to subject matter normally taught upon approval by the principal or immediate supervisor or Superintendent.
 - c. Compensation will not be provided for courses related to personality development or personal interests not related to teaching, e.g., hobbies, real estate, financial investments, etc.
 - d. An additional stipend, not to exceed \$60 per semester unit, may be granted by the Superintendent to encourage individuals to participate in particular courses of direct benefit to the school or District.
 - e. Lower division, Early Childhood Education (ECE) units earned after receiving a Bachelor's degree will be applied to advancement on the salary schedule consistent with Article V Section 1 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement provided the unit member has fully met the ECE requirements to teach Transitional Kindergarten.
- 4. Workshops, conferences, adult education classes or up to two (2) observation days will be compensated through reimbursement of tuition, registration or substitutes provided upon approval by the principal, immediate supervisor, or if the Superintendent determines that the benefit to the school staff or District committee warrants additional reimbursement or compensation, using the following guidelines:
 - a. Release time to attend conferences or workshops may be granted by the principal or immediate supervisor only when it is determined that such participation would be of general benefit to the staff or to the school's program.
 - b. Reimbursement of tuition or registration fees up to \$75/per year per individual shall be provided for attendance at any educational conference or workshop with prior approval of the principal or immediate supervisor.

- c. Reimbursement for tuition or registration costs between \$75 up to \$150 shall require recommended approval of the principal or immediate supervisor and approval of the Board.
- d. Reimbursement for travel, lodging and/or meals up to \$150 may be granted upon prior approval by the principal or immediate supervisor when it is determined that such participation would be of general benefit to the staff or to the school's program.
- e. Requests for reimbursement over \$150 must receive prior approval by the Superintendent.
- f. All individuals participating in any conference or workshop must complete a Conference Attendance form prior to attendance to receive reimbursement.
- 5. Tuition costs, when granted, will be reimbursed up to the dollar amount that would result if the course were taken at one of the California State University campuses at the rate in effect at that time, depending upon whether the course was taken during the regular year or in the summer. Staff must submit fee schedule from the California State University campuses with Pre-Approval Plan.
- 6. Speech and Language Specialist
 - \$750 (% of FTE) stipend to be paid twice annually
 - Salary schedule placement credit for all years of previous experience provided that such service meet all of the following criteria:
 - 1. in a credentialed teaching position
 - a. The previous service was rendered for at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the school year, on basis of a full-time contract.
 - b. The previous service was rendered in a public or private school system within the United States of America or dependent schools maintained for American overseas dependents.
 - 2. in a Speech/Language clinical setting
 - a. Via employer verification letter a minimum of 834 clinical hours in a 12-month period.
 - b. Work rendered after MA.
- 7. Stipends for either upper or lower division units will not be provided when release time has been granted for participation.

Credit for Professional Work Experience

Beginning January 1, 2023, employees new to the District shall be allowed salary schedule placement credit for unlimited years of previous experience. Provided that such prior service shall meet all of the following criteria, in addition to any pertinent college and university credit criteria enumerated above:

- A. The previous service was rendered for at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the school year, on the basis of a full-time contract.
- B. The previous service was rendered after the confirmation of a Bachelor's Degree.

- C. The previous service was rendered in a public or private school system within the United States of America or dependent schools maintained for American overseas dependents.
- D. The previous service was rendered in a position comparable to the initial District assignment.

Each July 1, an employee shall be appropriately placed within the District compensation plan in accordance with District-approved professional work experience. In order to qualify for any salary schedule step advancement provisions, an employee's service shall meet the following criterion:

• The prior year service was rendered under a full-time contract for at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the school year.

Additional Stipends

- 1. **Hourly rate** for work rendered outside of regular contractual work hours shall be paid at \$48 an hour (effective the 26th of the month following ratification of this 2023/24 agreement by the Governing Board). Timecards must be received by the payroll department within 30 days of extra hours being completed and under no circumstance can a timecard be accepted after 60 days. For timecards for hours worked in June each year, timecards must be turned in by July 30th or they will not be accepted.
- 2. **Combination Classes**: Each teacher assigned to a combination class will be allocated a \$1,000 stipend to be paid twice annually and \$200 to be used for supplemental materials, substitute release days for planning purposes or other discretionary uses as approved by the site principal.
- 3. Administrative Designee Stipends: Each teacher appointed as an administrative designee to a site with less than 80% assistant principal coverage shall receive \$700 at the end of the school year with a positive evaluation by the site principal. If two unit members share the Administrative Designee role, the stipend will be \$350 per unit member. Teachers serving in this role will serve as the acting administrator when the Principal is not on site. Additional duties may include but are not limited to: Assisting with schedules for Special Days or assemblies, assisting with student discipline, attending meetings in place of the Principal, communicating with the District Office in the Principal's absence, attending schoolwide events in place of the Principal, or other duties as assigned by the Principal.

Duties associated with the Administrative Designee stipend which are pre-approved and which occur outside the contractual day shall be eligible for extra duty pay. This stipend will be prorated based on the number of school days worked in the school year.

- 4. **Individual Education Plan Meetings**: Each teacher required to attend IEP meetings by the administrator, either before or after normal working hours, shall receive District committee rate or increment thereof. Each teacher is required to work a 7.5 hour day, beginning and ending times may be modified by the administrator. Principal cannot unilaterally modify the workday for purpose of cost reduction without agreement between administration and employee.
- 5. **Severe Special Education Stipend:** \$2,000 to be paid twice annually.

- 6. **SDC and APE Teachers** will be allocated a \$1,000 (% of FTE) stipend to be paid twice annually.
- 7. American Sign Language (ASL) = \$500

Extended School Year

1. Any credentialed teacher teaching Extended School Year, beginning on June 1, 2023, will receive an hourly rate of \$51.

Mentor Stipends

- 7.1 Effective upon ratification of the Governing Board, The District will provide a CTC Required Permit Teacher Mentor Stipend of \$1,500, paid semi-annually, for tenured teachers who serve as mentors for teachers who are serving under a Short Term Staffing Permit (STSP), Provisional Internship Permit (PIP), or Local Assignment Permit, as defined by the CTC on Form 41-4. This stipend will be prorated based on days worked.
- 7.2 *Induction Mentor Stipend* of \$2,000- effective upon ratification- is paid to teachers who serve as Induction Mentors to SSUSD teachers in the SCV Induction program. Requirements for the induction mentors are provided by the SCV Induction Consortium and are based on current program requirements. This stipend will be prorated based on days worked.

On Site Mentors

7.3 The SSUSD provides a mentor teacher to all teachers serving their first year within the District.

Principal Responsibilities:

- Principals are to select a mentor teacher to serve each new teacher on their site.
- Principals are to notify the Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services of the names of the mentor and mentee by completing the Mentor Information Form.

Mentor Responsibilities:

- Mentor teachers are to meet with their mentee at least one time per month.
- Mentor teachers are to complete a time log which documents interactions. (submit monthly to the Administrative Secretary for Educational Services)
- Mentor teachers are paid \$500 for their mentor service (per mentee per year).
- Prorated based on days worked.

Salary Classification Requirements - Bilingual Compensation

Teachers who apply for and are accepted by the District for admission to and participation in educational programs leading to English Language Development (ELD) and Bilingual certification will, upon submitting certification, receive the following stipends:

 Bilingual Certificate of Competence (BCC), Bilingual Cross cultural, Language and Academic Development (BCLAD) Certificate, Bilingual Teaching Credential = \$1,500 (Those teachers employed prior to the 2000/01 shall have their stipend remain at \$4,500.) Teachers will be paid these stipends provided they have met all the following conditions:

- 1. The December portion (50%) of the 2022-2023 EL Stipend will be the last stipend paid.
- 2. The teacher is qualified, has been requested to sign, and has signed a form indicating his/her commitment to training and acquisition of ELD or Bilingual certification.
- Teachers will receive an annual stipend for only one certificate. Teachers in training
 for the BCLAD are eligible to receive one-time stipends as incentive for passing
 examinations 4-6 of the BCLAD.

One Time Stipends

- Passage of BCLAD test 4 (Methodology for Primary Language Instruction) = \$250
- Passage of BCLAD test 5 (The Culture of Emphasis) = \$500
- Passage of BCLAD test 6 (The Language of Emphasis) = \$1,000

Incorrect Salary Placement

Errors in current salary schedule placement shall only be corrected during the fiscal year in which they are discovered, and any such corrections shall only apply to that fiscal year.

After School Work Rate (Non-District related)

Teachers who accept employment with outside vendors after their work day shall be compensated by the outside vendor at whatever rate is determined between the vendor and the individual teacher.

Article VI: Employee Benefits

The District shall provide negotiated insurance benefits as specified within the master insurance contract(s) between the District and the respective insurance carriers the District selects. The Summary of Benefit Levels is provided by the insurance carrier(s) based upon the terms and conditions of the master insurance policy contract(s) which will be distributed to all employees. Voluntary Benefit options are outlined on Attachment C. Medicare coverage will be provided according to (Attachment D).

District Contribution: For health insurance coverage, the District will contribute \$1,773.43 tenthly. Should an employee select coverage for dependents in excess of District contribution, a payroll deduction will be required for the difference.

Effective July 1, 2018 the District sponsored health plan will provide an incentive of \$50 tenthly to any employee who is required to enroll in one of the District health care offerings through SISC, based on SISC's published enrollment requirements, who provides evidence of enrollment in group sponsored coverage, and chooses to decline coverage by selecting to participate in SISC's WABE program rather than enrolling in a SISC medical plan for primary medical coverage.

Effective 7/1/18, an eligible unit member whose spouse or registered domestic partner is a SSSD employee enrolled in District health coverage will enroll only in the WABE Bronze Plan, for which the District will contribute \$ 50 tenthly unless the employee presents a current, valid court order requiring double coverage, and thus enrolls in an alternate plan. In such case, the employee shall by payroll deduction pay all premium costs over the District's \$50 tenthly contribution for the double coverage.

Kindly refer to the examples below for further clarification.

Example A (a 2-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or are otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 2- party unit, the plan will not fund any amounts that exceed the total costs for each Subscriber as single tiered enrollments, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a legally

binding document requiring such double coverage. If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber as a dependent, and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

Example B (a 3-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 3- party unit, (such as if a married couple has one child dependent), the plan will not fund any amounts that exceed

the total costs for one 2-Party enrollment and one Single enrollment, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a court order or other binding legal document requiring such double coverage. If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber or their dependent in double coverage and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

Example C (a 4-or-more-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 4- or-more-Party unit, (such as if a married couple has two or more child dependents) the District will not fund any amounts that exceed the total costs for one Family enrollment and one Single enrollment or one Single selection of SISC's WABE program, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a court order requiring such double coverage. If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber or their dependent in double coverage and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

The District Insurance Committee will make every effort to make a recommendation for all employee coverage by July 1, annually.

Current rates can be found in Business Services section of the District webpage.

Plan Year for medical benefits is July 1 through June 30.

Plan Year for dental and vision benefits is from October 1 through September 30.

Benefit eligible employees, if hired between the 1st - 15th of the month, coverage becomes effective the date of hire. If hire date is between the 16th - 31st, coverage becomes effective the first of the month following the date of hire.

Eligibility

- 1 .Full-Time Employees A full-time employee shall have the District financial contribution paid in full.
- 2. Part-Time Employees Employees serving less than full-time but half-time or more shall have their District contribution as provided below.

Time of District Service Contribution

1. 50% or more - Shall receive the full District contribution

Employee Benefit Payments

Leave of Absence

- The District shall continue to contribute an employee's premium contribution, while on paid leave status, in the same manner as if the employee had remained in regular service.
- 2. Employees on District-approved, non-paid leave of absence may elect to continue coverage for themselves by mailing the entire premium payment required for coverage, made payable to the Sulphur Springs Union School District and submitted to the District Office.

Cancellation

The employee insurance coverage, under the District's master insurance contract(s), shall be canceled under the following conditions:

- 1. The leave expires and the employee does not return to active duty.
- 2. A premium payment is not received in the District Office by the first of the month.

Article VII: Early Retirement Benefit Program And/Or State Teachers Retirement System Early Retirement Program ("Golden Handshake Incentive")

Effective July 1, 2023, the District shall no longer be required to offer the Golden Handshake Incentive. In lieu of the Golden Handshake Incentive, the District shall transfer the existing cost of the Golden Handshake Incentive, into a one-time three percent (3%) on-schedule salary increase for all unit members effective July 1, 2022. Unit members may participate in the Golden Handshake Incentive during the 2022-2023 school year. Eligibility for the Golden Handshake Incentive during the 2022-2023 school year shall be determined by CalSTRS.

EARLY RETIREMENT HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT PLAN AT 55

The purpose of this section is to allow early retirement participants to continue to participate in the District-sponsored fringe benefit programs prior to the retiree becoming eligible for participation in Medicare Programs.

Participation Requirements

- 1. An employee must have reached age 55 prior to September 1, of the year in which retirement commences.
- 2. An employee must have rendered at least ten (10) years active service in the District prior to retirement.

Benefits

Retirees must participate in the District sponsored benefits program to be eligible for District support. The District will not provide for payments to other insurers or cash in lieu of insurance coverage

- The District will contribute a payment up to 50% of the premiums of the District Benefits (health, dental & vision) capped dollar amount until the employee reaches the age of 65 or becomes eligible for state or federal health insurance.
- 2. For an employee who has rendered at least fifteen (15) years active service in the District prior to retirement, the District will contribute a payment up to 100% of the premiums of the District benefits capped dollar amount until the employee reaches the age of 65 or becomes eligible for state or federal health insurance.

Effective July 1, 2018 the District sponsored health plan will provide an incentive of \$50 tenthly to any employee who is required to enroll in one of the District health care offerings through SISC, based on SISC's published enrollment

requirements, who provides evidence of enrollment in group sponsored coverage, and chooses to decline coverage by selecting to participate in SISC's WABE program rather than enrolling in a SISC medical plan for primary medical coverage.

Effective 7/1/18, an eligible unit member whose spouse or registered domestic partner is a SSSD employee enrolled in District health coverage will enroll only in the WABE Bronze Plan, for which the District will contribute \$ 50 tenthly unless the employee presents a current, valid court order requiring double coverage, and thus enrolls in an alternate plan. In such case, the employee shall by payroll deduction pay all premium costs over the District's \$50 tenthly contribution for the double coverage.

Kindly refer to the examples below for further clarification.

Example A (a 2-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or are otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 2- party unit, the plan will not fund any amounts that exceed the total costs for each Subscriber as single tiered enrollments, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a legallybinding document requiring such double coverage. If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber as a dependent, and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

Example B (a 3-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 3- party unit, (such as if a married couple has one child dependent), the plan will not fund any amounts that exceed the total costs for one 2-Party enrollment and one Single enrollment, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a court order or other binding legal document requiring such double coverage.

If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber or their dependent in double coverage and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

Example C (a 4-or-more-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 4- or-more-Party unit, (such as if a married couple has two or more child dependents) the District will not fund any amounts that exceed the total costs for one Family enrollment and one Single enrollment or one Single selection of SISC's WABE program, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a court order requiring such double coverage. If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber or their dependent in double coverage and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

The District Insurance Committee will make every effort to make a recommendation for all employee coverage by July 1, annually.

Current rates can be found in Business Services section of the District webpage.

EARLY RETIREMENT HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT PLAN BETWEEN 56 - 64

Coverage provided by this Article is under the provision of the current insurance carrier's rules and regulations. This information needs to be considered if retiring out of the state of California.

Procedures

- 1. Any employee electing to participate in the Early Retirement Health Insurance Benefit Program shall notify the District of their intent to retire no later than February 1st of the school year preceding retirement.
- 2. An employee shall submit a letter of resignation to the District no later than one (1) month prior to participation in the Early Retirement Health Insurance Benefit Program. Such

- resignation may contain an effective date, which coincides with the end of the present school term or the beginning of the subsequent school term.
- 3. Upon loss of benefits, in accordance with Article III, Benefits the retiree may elect, with the approval of the District insurance carrier, to continue such benefits upon payment of the premium costs to the District.
- 4. For an employee that elects to retire between the ages of 56 and 64 and has rendered fifteen (15) years of service to the District, the District will contribute a payment up to 70% of the premiums of the District Benefits capped dollar amount until the employee reaches the age of 65 or becomes eligible for state or federal health insurance.
- 5. For an employee that elects to retire between the ages of 56 and 64 and has rendered twenty (20) years of service to the District, the District will contribute a payment up to 80% of the premiums of the District benefits capped dollar amount until the employee reaches the age of 65 or becomes eligible for state or federal health insurance.
- 6. For an employee that elects to retire between the ages of 56 and 64 and has rendered twenty-five (25) years of service to the District, the District will contribute a payment up to 90% of the premiums of the District Benefits capped dollar amount until the employee reaches the age of 65 or becomes eligible for state or federal health insurance.
- 7. For an employee that elects to retire between the ages of 56 and 64 and has rendered thirty (30) years of service to the District, the District will contribute a payment up to 100% of the premiums of the District Benefits capped dollar amount until the employee reaches the age of 65 or becomes eligible for state or federal health insurance.
- 8. Such benefits shall not be paid for a period of more than ten (10) years nor past the age of 65.

Effective July 1, 2018 the District sponsored health plan will provide an incentive of \$50 tenthly to any employee who is required to enroll in one of the District health care offerings through SISC, based on SISC's published enrollment requirements, who provides evidence of enrollment in group sponsored coverage, and chooses to decline coverage by selecting to participate in SISC's WABE program rather than enrolling in a SISC medical plan for primary medical coverage.

Effective 7/1/18, an eligible unit member whose spouse or registered domestic partner is a SSSD employee enrolled in District health coverage will enroll only in the WABE Bronze Plan, for which the District will contribute \$ 50 tenthly unless the employee presents a current, valid court order requiring double coverage, and thus enrolls in an alternate plan. In such case, the employee shall by payroll deduction pay all premium costs over the District's \$50 tenthly contribution for the double coverage.

Kindly refer to the examples below for further clarification.

Example A (a 2-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or are otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 2- party unit, the plan will not fund any amounts that exceed the total costs for each Subscriber as single tiered enrollments, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a legally

binding document requiring such double coverage. If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber as a dependent, and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

Example B (a 3-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 3- party unit, (such as if a married couple has one child dependent), the plan will not fund any amounts that exceed

the total costs for one 2-Party enrollment and one Single enrollment, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a court order or other binding legal document requiring such double coverage.

If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber or their dependent in double coverage and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

Example C (a 4-or-more-Party Family Unit)

If two eligible Subscribers (active or retired) are married or otherwise eligible to become dependents of the other as a 4- or-more-Party unit, (such as if a married couple has two or more child dependents) the District will not fund any amounts

that exceed the total costs for one Family enrollment and one Single enrollment or one Single selection of SISC's WABE program, unless either or both Subscribers have been issued a court order requiring such double coverage.

If one or both of the eligible Subscribers elects to enroll the other Subscriber or their dependent in double coverage and/or unnecessarily enrolls in SISC's WABE program that person will pay the difference in premium the enrollment has cost the plan via payroll deductions.

The District Insurance Committee will make every effort to make a recommendation for all employee coverage by July 1, annually.

Current rates can be found in Business Services section of the District webpage.

Article VIII: Grievance

Definitions

- 1. A "grievance" shall mean an alleged violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of a specific provision of this Agreement.
- 2. A "grievant" shall mean an employee covered by this Agreement filing a grievance.
- 3. A "conferee" shall mean any Association representative selected by the grievant to assist in presenting and processing the claimant's grievance. An immediate supervisor with whom a grievance is filed may also choose a representative to assist in processing the grievance.
- "Association" shall mean the employee organization recognized by the Board of Trustees as the exclusive representative for the bargaining unit of employees covered by this Agreement.
- 5. "Day" shall mean any day on which the central administrative office of the District is open for business.
- 6. An "Immediate Supervisor" shall be the first level administrator having immediate jurisdiction over the grievant.
- 7. A "District Grievance Form" shall mean a District provided form completed in writing by the grievant at Level II. Such form shall be mutually developed by the Association and the District.

General Provisions

- 1. The purpose of the procedure is to attempt to secure equitable solutions to the grievances. All parties agree that these proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as possible, and that the grievant and immediate supervisor shall attempt to resolve the grievance at the informal level.
- 2. The filing of a grievance shall in no way interfere with the right of the Board of Trustees to proceed in carrying out its management responsibilities subject to the final decision pertaining to the grievance. In the event the alleged grievance involves an order, requirement or directive, the grievant shall fulfill or carry out such order, requirement or directive, pending the final decision pertaining to the grievance.
- 3. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any grievant to discuss a grievance informally with his or her immediate supervisor, or to have the grievance adjusted without intervention of the Association prior to arbitration, provided that the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. Any proposed resolution at the formal levels shall not be agreed upon by the District until the Association has been provided a copy, and allowed an opportunity to respond.
- 4. The filing of a grievance shall not reflect unfavorably upon the grievant, nor upon the supervisor with whom it may be filed.

- 5. The employee and immediate supervisor shall have the right to include in grievance hearings such witnesses as they deem necessary to develop facts pertinent to the grievance. The names of the witnesses to be utilized in the formal grievance hearing shall be made available to either party upon request. Such witnesses shall be in addition to the conferee that either party may select. Witnesses called by either party who are District employees shall be released from duty without loss of compensation in order to present facts that are material and relevant to the grievance.
- 6. In the case of a multiple grievance which affects more than one teacher in a single building or teachers in more than one building, the Association, with the consent of the grievant, may choose to group the claims together at Level II so that only one form need be filed at each succeeding level, and only one individual selected by the grievant and the Association shall proceed with the grievance claim. The decision rendered relative to this single grievance shall be applicable to all claims on the same issue arising from the same set of circumstances. The District shall not be required to hear more than one formal grievance claim per day.
- 7. In the event that a grievance claim cannot be heard and a decision rendered during the grievant's service period, the time limits specified herein may be extended to a reasonable future time upon the mutual agreement of both parties. The purpose of any extension shall be to hear the grievance matter as expeditiously as possible yet not interfere with either the grievant's non-service period, nor the non-active service period of supervisory and management personnel.
- 8. A representative designated by the Association shall be allowed to attend a grievance hearing or subsequent hearings on the same matter in order to process a grievance to a final resolution without loss of compensation.
- 9. All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance matter shall be filed and maintained in a separate grievance file.

Informal Procedure

Level I:

The employee shall meet with the immediate supervisor within twenty (20) days of the occurrence or within twenty (20) days of when the employee could reasonably have known of the occurrence, act, or omission giving rise to the grievance. With mutual consent of both parties, either the employee or the immediate supervisor may have a conferee present at such a conference. If the potential grievance is not resolved at this level, the employee may proceed to Level II. Upon request, the employee shall receive a written statement from the immediate supervisor that the issue was not resolved at Level I.

Formal Procedure

Level II

If within ten (10) days of the informal conference the grievant is not satisfied with the
decision at Level I, the grievant must present the grievance, in writing, on a District
provided form, to the immediate supervisor. The District form shall contain a clear
and concise statement of the grievance, the circumstances involved, the decision
rendered at the informal conference, if any, and the specific remedy sought.

- 2. The immediate supervisor shall communicate a decision to the employee in writing ten (10) days after receiving the grievance. If the immediate supervisor does not respond within the time limits specified, the grievant may appeal to the next level.
- 3. Within the above time limits, either party may request a conference to discuss the grievance matter. Either the grievant or the immediate supervisor may have a conferee present at such a conference.

Level III

- 1. If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level II, the grievant may, within ten (10) days, appeal the decision to the Superintendent. This written appeal statement shall include a copy of the original grievance and decision, if any, rendered at previous levels, and a clear and concise statement regarding the reasons for the appeal.
- Within the above time limits, either party may request a conference to discuss the grievance matter. Either the grievant or the Superintendent may have a conferee present at such a conference.
- 3. The Superintendent shall communicate a decision to the grievant within ten (10) days of the receipt of the grievance appeal.
- 4. If the Superintendent does not respond within the time limits specified, the grievant may appeal to the next level.

Level IV

- 1. If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level III, the grievant may, within ten (10) days, submit a request in writing to the Association and the Superintendent for arbitration of the dispute. Subsequent to a grievant's request for arbitration and prior to submission of the grievance to arbitration, the Association and the District may mutually request the services of a State Mediator to assist the parties in resolving the grievance. The form or content of any settlement discussions shall be confidential, shall not be construed as an admission of wrongdoing and shall not be binding on either party. The terms of the settlement, if any, shall be binding on all parties. The Association, grievant and District shall attempt to agree upon an arbitrator and if no agreement can be reached, the parties shall request that the California State Conciliation Service supply a panel of five names of persons experienced in hearing grievance matters in public schools. Each party shall alternately strike a name until one name remains. The remaining panel member shall be the arbitrator. The order of striking shall be determined by lot.
- The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and the hearing process shall be borne equally by the District and grievant. All other expenses, including fees for witnesses and conferees or the cost of substitutes shall be borne by the party incurring them.
- 3. The arbitrator shall, as soon as possible, hear evidence and render a decision on the issue or issues that were submitted to arbitration. If the parties cannot agree upon a submission agreement, the arbitrator shall determine the issues by referring to the written grievance and the answers attached at each level. In disputed cases regarding whether or not a grievance claim is within the scope of these proceedings, the arbitrator shall rule on the arbitrability of the issue.
- 4. The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify the terms of this Agreement.
- 5. After a hearing and both parties have had an opportunity to present written arguments, the arbitrator shall submit, within thirty (30) calendar days to all parties the written findings. The decision of the arbitrator is binding on both parties.

Article IX: Class Size

A. The allocation ratio of teachers to regular program pupils in the District shall not exceed 1 to 26 in TK-3 and 1 to 32 in each 4-6 grades in each classroom at each site. The District is continually monitoring class size ratios. On four dates in the school year (25th day of school, 70th day of school, 115th day of school, and the 160th day of school) the District will run a class size roster report. Any teacher whose class exceeds the ratio of 1 to 32 for regular program classes, 1 to 15 for Mild/Moderate classes, or 1 to 13 for Moderate/Severe classrooms on those dates will receive a stipend of \$4 per student, per day above the ratios specified above. These stipends will be paid twice annually and will be prorated for dates the teacher is on a board approved leave of absence. Each eligible classroom will be allocated a stipend for the following time periods: 1-45th day of school, 46-90th day of school, 91-135th day of school, and the 136-180th day of school. The stipend will be paid in two installments once for the 1-90th day of school and once for the 91-180th day of school.

- 1.Individual sites involved with voluntary flexible staffing patterns shall not be required to implement the remedial plan described herein above, but in no case shall the combined enrollment in a flexible staffing pattern exceed 32 pupils per teacher.
- 2. Individual sites involved with mainstreaming students described in the Master Plan for Special Education shall allocate a ratio factor of 1.5 for any student assigned to a regular program class for any portion of the day. In no event shall the regular program pupils and the special education pupil full time equivalent student ratio exceed a staffing pattern of 1 to 32 without a remedial plan of options being initiated. The pupils described in the Master Plan for Special Education specified herein are as follows:
 - Deaf and Severely Hard of Hearing
 - Educationally Handicapped, i.e. learning disability, behavior disorder, serious emotional disturbance, autism
 - Intellectual Disability
 - Severe Language Disorder/Aphasia
 - Blind and Visually Handicapped
 - Orthopedically Handicapped
- 3. Individual sites involved with programs designated as Learning Disability Groups (LDG) utilizing the services of a resource teacher shall allocate a ratio factor of 1.5 for any student specifically identified and admitted to the program. The ratio factor shall be in effect despite the fact that the pupils participating in this program may be occasionally removed from the regular classroom to receive educational assistance from the resource teacher.
- B. The allocation ratio of special education teachers to special education programs shall not exceed state maximum limitation.
- C. Teachers shall be allocated based on estimated enrollments and when actual enrollment is known, the District shall adjust the number of teachers assigned to conform with A and B, above.

Article X: Safety Conditions

- 1. The parties agree a unit member should not be required to work in a location or engage in an activity which poses an immediate threat of serious bodily harm.
- 2. The District shall exercise its best efforts to identify and correct unsafe working conditions and activities.
 - 2.1. A unit member who believes an unsafe working condition or activity exists, shall promptly notify the immediate supervisor and the Site Safety Committee.
 - 2.2. The immediate supervisor will respond. If the immediate supervisor agrees that corrective action is required, the unit member will be notified of the corrective action.
 - 2.3. If the unit member disagrees with the corrective action or lack of, the unit member may appeal the supervisor's decision to the Superintendent or Designee. The Superintendent's decision will be final.
- 3. The District shall establish, implement and maintain a written injury prevention program.
 - 3.1. An Employee Safety Committee may be established by the District. The Employee Safety Committee may be discontinued by the District at any time.
 - 3.2. The Employee Safety Committee shall perform the functions established by law, and shall notify all unit members of the injury prevention program established by the District.
 - 3.3. If an Employee Safety Committee is established, the Association shall be permitted to appoint one (1) representative.
 - 3.4. Recommendations of an Employee Safety Committee shall be advisory only.
 - 3.5. Unit members shall receive a copy of the District's injury prevention program.
 - 3.6. Unit members shall comply with any injury prevention program, safety rule, safety procedures or safety policies established by the District.
- 4. The District has the exclusive responsibility for coordinating contact with outside agencies, maintenance of emergency procedures, development and review of emergency or safety equipment, and provision and maintenance of work site safety supplies and devices. The level and kind of services and supplies provided shall be at the sole discretion of the District.
- 5. In the event of an emergency or natural disaster, unit members shall remain on campus and participate fully as "disaster Service Worker".
 - 5.1. In the event of an emergency school or District closure including but not limited to natural disaster or quarantine, unit members shall receive their daily rate of pay and

- benefits. If make-up days are required, the District shall negotiate the impact of such days with the Association.
- 5.2. The District may provide in-service to unit members on disaster preparedness.
- 6. Employees shall immediately report any assault in connection with their employment on a District provided form to the Principal (or in the absence of the Principal, the Assistant Superintendent of Personnel), who shall promptly notify the Superintendent or designee.
 - 6.1. The Principal or designee will respond in writing within 10 business days. If the immediate supervisor agrees that corrective action is required, the unit member will be notified in writing. If requested by the District, a unit member shall submit a written report of the incident within 24 hours.
 - 6.2. The Unit member may appeal the Principal or designee's decision to the Assistant Superintendent of Personnel/Pupil Services. The Assistant Superintendent's decision can be appealed to the Superintendent. The Superintendent's decision will be final.
 - 6.3. If requested by the unit member, the District shall reimburse the employee for repair and replacement of personal property that the District determines is damaged or destroyed as a result of an assault that occurred within the scope of the employment of the unit member while acting in his/her official capacity. Reimbursement shall not exceed \$500 per incident. The District may require reasonable proof of loss.
 - 6.4. When absences or disability arise out of or from an assault which occurred within the scope and course of a unit member's employment, the unit member may utilize the applicable sections of Article XII, "Leaves" of this Agreement. Nothing in the Article shall preclude a unit member from filing a workers' compensation claim.
- 7. If a unit member believes the presence of a parent or guardian is disruptive to the unit member's duties, the unit member shall immediately notify the Principal or designee who shall determine what action, if any, is appropriate.
 - 7.1. Unit members may submit a written report on a District provided form to the Principal or designee concerning any disruptive parent or guardian. No unit member shall be discriminated against as a result of such reporting.
 - 7.2. The Principal or designee will respond in writing within 10 business days. If the Principal or designee agrees that corrective action is required, the unit member will be notified in writing that corrective action was taken.
 - 7.3. The Unit member may appeal the Principal or designee's decision to the Assistant Superintendent of Personnel/Pupil Services. The Assistant Superintendent's decision can be appealed to the Superintendent. The Superintendent's decision will be final.
 - 7.4. Any conclusion or recommendation issued in response to such a report shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of this agreement.

1. Definition

A "transfer" is a change by a unit member from one school/work site to another within the District. A transfer may be requested by a unit member or initiated by the District.

2. Posting of Vacancies

The District will post all vacancies on the District website and in school offices that occur prior to July 15th of the upcoming school year (any vacancy that occurs after July 15th will not be posted for internal moves). All Teachers on Special Assignment (TOSA) positions shall be posted as District-wide vacancies.

Unit members who desire to transfer shall file a Certificated Internal Application/Transfer Form with the Assistant Superintendent of Personnel and Pupil Services. Transfer applications shall be addressed to specific site vacancies.

Upon closing of the posted vacancies, internal candidates will be granted an interview as well as other qualified applicants. After interviewing the internal candidates, the District is free to hire employees from outside the District.

All applicants shall receive written notice as to whether or not they received the position for which they applied. A unit member who does not receive a requested transfer shall be given the reasons in writing within ten (10) days, if requested.

3. Criteria For Filling Employee Initiated Transfer

All of the following criteria shall be used in consideration of transfer requests:

- a. The needs and efficient operation of the District.
- b. The contribution the staff member can make in the new position.
- c. The qualifications, including the experience and recent training, of the staff member
- d. compared to those of other candidates for both the position to be filled and the position to be vacated.
- e. Credential(s) held by the unit member appropriate for the position.
- f. The length and quality of the service rendered to the District by the employee.
- g. Degrees/Certification held by the unit member related to the position.
- h. Unit member's preference.

In the event of an employee initiated transfer, the unit member shall not request a transfer again for two full school years.

4. Criteria for filling Employer Initiated Transfers

Employer initiated transfers may be initiated by District management. An employer initiated transfer may be made at any time by the administration for the following reasons:

a. To balance the certificated staff of the District.

- b. A change of enrollment necessitating transfer of staff.
- c. An opportunity to evaluate an employee in a different school or location.
- d. Improvement of learning conditions.
- e. Significant personality conflicts.

In the event of such transfer a unit member shall be given the reasons in writing within ten (10) days, if requested.

In the event of an employer initiated transfer, the unit member shall not be employer initiated transferred again for two full school years.

In the event an employee is transferred after the start of the school year, the employer will provide District personnel support to pack current classroom, move classroom equipment and assist in unpacking materials in new classroom. Additionally, two release days or two paid non-school days will be provided to the transferred employee to organize his/her new classroom and prepare for his/her new students. Should those non-school days fall on a day that the District is not in operation then no additional support will be provided to pack, unpack and move equipment. In the event that an employee is transferred at the conclusion of the school year, two release days or two paid non-school days will be provided to move and organize new classroom. District will move all boxes and equipment during District operation days.

5. New Hires

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, once assigned, any newly hired or re-hired teacher shall be ineligible to exercise transfer rights described herein during his/her first two years of contract service with the District. A probationary teacher or rehired teacher may apply for available openings at the end of his/her second year of employment, as openings occur for the following year.

Article XII: Leaves

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Purpose

The purpose of bereavement leave utilization shall be for the death of a member of the immediate family.

Eligibility

An employee covered by this Agreement.

Procedure

An employee exercising this leave of absence provision shall notify the District as soon as possible with the expected duration of the absence.

Requirements

An employee shall be granted up to five (5) days for bereavement purposes. Additional days of absence beyond those described herein may be provided under the terms of the personal necessity leave provisions of Article XII. If unusual circumstances exist, the employee may, with the approval of the Superintendent, be granted up to (3) additional days of bereavement leave.

Compensation

All days of absence used under the provisions of bereavement leave shall result in no loss of compensation to the employee.

Return to Service

Immediately upon return to active service the employee shall complete the District absence form and submit it to the immediate supervisor. The employee shall provide, upon District request, additional verification of the use of these leave provisions.

INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT AND ILLNESS LEAVE

Purpose

Industrial accident and illness leave shall be granted for illness or injury incurred within the course and scope of an employee's assigned duties.

Eligibility

An employee covered by this Agreement.

Procedure

An employee who has sustained a job-related injury shall report the injury on a District-approved accident report form, within, insofar as possible, twenty-four (24) hours to the immediate supervisor. An employee shall report any illness on a District-approved report form to the immediate supervisor within, insofar as possible, twenty-four (24) hours of knowledge that the illness is an alleged industrial illness.

Requirements

- 1. Allowable leave shall be for not more than sixty (60) days during which the schools of the District are required to be in session or when the employee would otherwise have been performing work for the District in any one fiscal year for the same illness or accident.
- 2. Allowable leave shall not be accumulated from year to year.
- 3. Industrial accident or illness leave shall commence on the first day of absence.
- 4. Industrial accident or illness leave shall be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a temporary disability indemnity award.
- 5. When an industrial accident or illness leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the employee shall be entitled to only the amount of unused leave due for the same illness or injury.
- Any employee receiving benefits as a result of this Section shall, during periods of injury or illness, remain within the State of California unless the Governing Board authorizes travel outside the State.
- 7. During any industrial paid leave of absence, the employee may endorse to the District the temporary disability indemnity checks received on account of his or her industrial accident or illness. The District, in turn, shall issue the employee appropriate salary warrants for payment of the employee's salary and shall deduct normal retirement, other authorized contributions, and the temporary disability indemnity, if any, actually paid to and retained by the employee for periods covered by such salary warrants. Upon conclusion of this industrial paid leave, an employee may utilize any available sick leave benefits providing that any sick leave utilization when combined with any temporary disability indemnity shall not exceed 100% of the employee's normal contribution.

Return to Service

An employee shall be permitted to return to service after an industrial accident or illness only upon the presentation of a release from the authorized Worker's Compensation physician certifying the employee's ability to return to his or her position classification without restrictions or detriment to the employee's physical and emotional well-being.

JUDICIAL AND OFFICIAL APPEARANCE LEAVE

Purpose

Judicial and Official Appearance Leave may be granted for purposes of regularly called jury duty, appearance as a witness in court other than as a litigant, or to respond to an official order from another governmental jurisdiction for reasons not brought about through the connivance or misconduct of the employee.

Eligibility

An employee covered by this Agreement.

Procedure

The employee seeking an official judicial appearance leave shall submit a request accompanied by the official order for an approved absence to the District Office. Such request shall be submitted not less than ten (10) days prior to the beginning date of the leave.

Requirements

If an employee has been called for jury service during the school year and has such service deferred to fall break, winter break, spring break or summer, and is then required to serve on a trial for more than ten (10) days without requesting to be on that trial, any time beyond the ten (10) days shall not be charged to the employee's sick leave.

If an employee is required to serve on a trial for more than ten (10) days and has not requested to do so, any time beyond the ten (10) days will not be deducted from the employee's sick leave.

An employee may be granted a leave of absence not to exceed ten (10) days in duration of the requirements of the official order for participation and appearance.

Compensation

An employee granted a leave of absence under these provisions shall be granted District compensation which, when added to jury or witness fees, shall not exceed the employee's regular District compensation.

Return to Service

- 1. Immediately upon return to active service, the employee shall complete the District absence form and submit it to the immediate supervisor.
- 2. The employee shall provide, upon District request, additional verification of the use of these leave provisions.

LEGISLATIVE LEAVE

Purpose

A leave of absence shall be granted employees who are elected to the California State Legislature.

Eligibility

An employee covered by this Agreement who has achieved permanent status within the District.

Procedure

An employee elected to the California State Legislature may request a legislative leave of absence to fill the term of office. Said request shall be submitted not later than thirty (30) days after being elected to office.

Requirements

During the term of legislative absence, the employee may be employed by the District to perform less than full-time service requiring certification qualifications, for such compensation and upon such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon.

Compensation

Except as provided above, an employee shall receive no District compensation while on legislative leave.

Return to Service

The employee shall within six (6) months of the expiration of the term of office be entitled to return to the position held at the time of election. If the position held at the time of election has been abolished at the time the employee is eligible to return to District service, reinstatement shall be made to a position for which the employee is certified. Reinstatement shall be made at the salary to which the employee would have been entitled had legislative leave not been utilized.

PERSONAL LEAVE

Purpose

An employee may request a personal leave of absence for reasons not enumerated elsewhere in this Agreement.

Eligibility

An employee covered by this Agreement.

Procedure

The employee seeking an approved personal leave of absence shall submit a request, including the reasons and any supporting information related thereto, and the duration of the length of the requested leave. For personal absence of five (5) working days or less, the employee shall submit the request described herein to the immediate supervisor not less than five (5) working days prior to the beginning date of the leave. The decision of the immediate supervisor for approval or denial of these requests shall be final. For personal absence in excess of five (5) workdays including the balance of the school semester/year, or a full school semester/year, the employee shall submit the request described herein to the Superintendent for recommendation and presentation to the Board of Trustees for approval or denial. An employee requesting such an extended personal leave of absence shall submit the request in sufficient time for the Superintendent's consideration and presentation to the Board of Trustees.

Requirements

An employee shall not accept gainful employment while on personal leave of absence without the prior written approval of the Superintendent.

Compensation

Any personal leave of absence that may be granted under these provisions shall be without compensation. Employees on personal leave of absence shall be permitted to participate in the District insurance program at their expense as provided for in Appendix C of this Agreement.

Return to Service

The employee shall be reinstated to the position classification held prior to the leave of absence or to a position for which the employee is certified. If the personal leave of absence was granted for personal health reasons, the employee shall be required to submit, prior to return to active duty, a medical statement indicating an ability to assume assigned duties without restrictions or detriment to the employee's physical or emotional well-being.

PERSONAL NECESSITY LEAVE

Purpose

Personal necessity leave may be utilized for circumstances that are not serious in nature, which cannot be expected to be disregarded, which necessitate immediate attention and cannot be dealt with during off-duty hours.

Eligibility

An employee of this unit who has sufficient unused sick leave credit.

Procedure

Employees shall submit a request for personal necessity leave approval on a District approved form to the immediate supervisor normally not less than three (3) working days prior to the

beginning date of the leave. The prior approval required for personal necessity leave shall not apply to the following reasons:

- 1. Death or serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family.
- 2. Accident involving person or property, or the person or property of the employee's immediate family.

When prior approval is not required, the employee shall make every reasonable effort to comply with District procedures designed to secure substitutes and shall notify the immediate supervisor of the expected duration of the absence.

Requirements

An employee may use accumulated sick leave for purposes of approved personal necessity leave.

Compensation

An employee shall receive full compensation for approved personal necessity leave.

Return to Service

- 1. Immediately upon return to active service, the employee shall complete the District absence form and submit it to the immediate supervisor.
- 2. The employee, for three (3) days of leave, shall only be required to state that "a personal emergency situation" exists. In no event shall personal emergency leave be utilized for one of the following examples:
 - a. Political activities or demonstrations;
 - b. Vacation, recreation, or social activities;
 - c. Civic or organization activities;
 - d. Employee association activities;
 - e. Routine personal activities;
 - f. Occupational investigation;
 - g. Work stoppage.
- 3. The employee shall provide, upon District request, additional verification of the use of these leave provisions.

SICK LEAVE

Purpose

The purpose of sick leave utilization shall be for physical and mental disability absences, which are medically necessary and caused by illness, injury, maternity disability, or guarantine.

Eligibility

An employee covered by this Agreement, working five (5) days per week for a full contract year shall be annually entitled to eleven (11) days of leave of absence for the purpose of sick leave utilization. An employee, covered by this Agreement, working less than full-time shall be entitled to sick leave in the same ratio that their employment bears to full-time employment.

Procedure

An employee exercising this leave of absence provision shall notify the District Office of their need to be absent from service as soon as known, but in no event later than reasonable notice necessary to secure substitute services. The notification described herein shall also include an estimate of the expected duration of the absence.

Requirements

An employee becoming aware of the need for absence due to surgery, maternity, or other predictable or priorly scheduled cause shall submit a statement from their attending physician as

far in advance of the initial disability date as possible. The physician's statement shall include the beginning date of disability, the cause of the disability, and the anticipated date of the return to active service.

Compensation

Any unused sick leave credit may be used by the employee for sick leave purposes, without loss of compensation. Upon exhaustion of all accumulated sick leave credit, an employee who continues to be absent for purposes of this policy shall receive fifty percent (50%) differential pay, i.e. regular compensation rate of the employee, for a period not to exceed five (5) continuous school months. In order to qualify for differential, pay an employee shall first utilize all accumulated sick leave credit. Only one increment of one hundred (100) days of fifty percent (50%) differential pay shall be allowed for any single and continuous absence that extends into the next year.

Return to Service

- 1. Immediately upon return to active service the employee shall complete the District absence form and submit it to the immediate supervisor.
- 2. The employee shall provide, upon District request, additional verification of the use of these leave provisions.
- 3. An employee who has experienced a disability absence requiring surgery, hospitalization, or extended medical treatment, shall be required to submit, prior to return to active duty, a medical statement indicating an ability to return to his or her position classification without restrictions or detriment to the employee's physical and emotional well-being.
- 4. An employee shall not be allowed to return to service and shall be charged with one additional day of sick leave absence if the employee fails to notify the District of intent to return to duty two (2) hours prior to the close of the preceding work day, and by such failure to notify a substitute is secured.

Article XIII: Evaluation Procedures

The following procedures for employee evaluation shall be utilized for the term of this Agreement:

- 1. Orientation materials related to evaluation procedures will be provided to all employees by the 10th school day.
- 2. Employees shall submit to their evaluator a complete listing of proposed objectives, and measurement activities related thereto, to be considered in the annual evaluation by the 25th school day.
- 3. The evaluator shall have completed by 30th school day annual objective setting conference with employee.
- 4. The evaluator shall by the 40th school day determine and shall provide the employee with a complete listing of actual objectives from those proposed by the evaluator and employee, and measurement activities from those proposed by the evaluator and employee, and measurement activities related thereto, that will be incorporated in the annual evaluation that the evaluator will prepare for the employee. The objectives and related measurement activities referred to herein shall be in accordance with the employee job description prescribed by the District. The District will make every attempt to have the number of objectives required to be uniform from site to site.
- 5. Within a reasonable time after the request, the evaluator shall be provided with a written progress report from the employee containing the latter's perception of the progress being made toward the achievement of the objectives prescribed in Item 3, above. During the course of the evaluation period, circumstances may change which may result in the modification of the original standards and objectives. These changes may be initiated by the supervisor or the employee. Agreement of both parties is required.
- 6. The evaluator, by the 145th school day, shall have conducted classroom observations in order to gather data on employee performance as the evaluator believes to be related to:
 - A. The actual objectives and measurement activities described in Item 3, above;
 - B. Other criteria for employee evaluation and appraisal that are established by the District Stull Act Guidelines.

At the discretion of the evaluator, tenured teachers may receive only one (1) formal instructional observation per year. Probationary teachers will receive two (2) formal instructional observations per year. Prior to conducting formal instructional observations regarding the teacher's duties related to the instructional objectives herein described, the teacher shall be notified of the observation prior to the beginning of the teacher's actual instructional day. Upon the request of the evaluatee or when, in the evaluator's judgment, additional instructional classroom observations are necessary, such observations may be conducted. Within a reasonable time, an employee shall be provided with a written statement regarding instructional observations that have been conducted. Such written statements shall contain a summary of the instructional activities observed, and any suggestions being made by the observer for possible improvement by the employee to include, but not be limited to, the following:

- 1) Specific directives for improvement
- 2) Assistance to implement such directives as
 - (a) Provisions of additional resources;
 - (b) Mandatory training programs designed to improve performance to be paid by the District.

A final and written report of the achievement of objectives, and measurement information related thereto shall be submitted by the employee to the evaluator by the 140th school day.

- 7. The evaluator shall prepare a written District evaluation form of employee performance and transmit the evaluation to the employee. The employee may submit a written reaction or response to the evaluation and such response shall be attached to the evaluation and placed in the employee's permanent personnel file which shall be maintained in the District Office. Permanent employees shall be evaluated at least once every other year, and in no event later than 30 days before the last school day scheduled on the school calendar of the current school year. Probationary employees shall be evaluated at least once each year and in no event later than the 150th school day.
- 8. Employees who meet each of the following conditions shall be evaluated up to every five (5) years:
 - 1. The employee has achieved permanent status.
 - 2. The employee has been employed by the District continuously as a certificated employees for at least (10) ten years.
 - 3. The employee is "highly qualified" as defined by 20 U.S.C. section 7801; 4.
 - 4. The employee has been rated as meeting or exceeding standards in all previous Evaluations from date of hire.
 - 5. The certificated employee or the evaluator may withdraw consent at any time.
- 9. An evaluation report conference shall be held by the 170th school day between the evaluator and any employee receiving a written evaluation report, as described in Item 6 above, during each school year within the term of this Agreement. The evaluator's judgments contained in classroom observation reports and annual evaluation appraisals shall not be subject to the grievance procedure contained in Article VIII of this Agreement.

Article XIV: Payroll Deductions & Organizational Security, Maintenance Of Membership, And Dues Deduction

1. Employee Rights

The District and the Association recognize the right of employees to form, join and participate in the lawful activities of employee organizations and the equal, alternative right of employees to refuse to form, join and participate in employee organizations. Accordingly, membership in the Association shall not be compulsory.

2. Organizational Security

- 2.1 A bargaining unit member has the right to choose to:
 - become an Association member, or
 - elect not to become an Association member

3. Dues and Deductions

The Sulphur Springs District Teachers Association has the exclusive right to have employee organization membership dues deducted by the District for employees in the bargaining unit, without charge.

- 3.1 The District shall deduct, in accordance with the Association dues and schedule, dues from the wages of all unit employees who have submitted payroll deduction authorization forms to the District. Such authorization forms shall remain in effect unless and until expressly revoked by written notice to SSDTA. Unit employees, in lieu of payroll deductions, may pay dues directly to the Association.
- 3.2 Prior to beginning automatic payroll deductions as authorized by Section 3.1 of this Article, the Association shall certify to the District in writing that the employee whose pay is to be affected by deduction has: (1) chosen to join the Association (2) chosen not to join the Association.
- 3.3 The Association may request a change in payroll deductions of Association members provided an authorized Association officer submits a written request to the District for such an adjustment and provided further that at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the change an authorized Association officer has furnished the District with evidence that the Association provided written notification to its members of the requested change. Such change shall consist of either: a total annual dues change; an increase or decrease in dues requirements; or, an increase or decrease in authorized deductions by a member for Association-approved items.
- 3.4 The District shall remit to the Association all dues collected with an accompanying alphabetical list of all unit members for whom dues deductions have been made.
- 4. Union Release Days SSDTA Union shall be provided with twenty (20) release days yearly in support of Union duties as assigned by SSDTA President.

Article XV: Savings Provision

If any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provisions will not be deemed valid except to the extent permitted by law; however, all other provisions will continue in full force and effect.

Article XVI: Extended Summer School For Special Education

Whenever the District, or students of the District, participate in an extended school year program, the following provisions shall apply. For purposes of this Article an extended school year shall mean the rendering of an instructional program that extends beyond the regular academic year of 180 instructional days.

Notice of Vacancies

No later than June 1, the District shall notify unit members of all available certificated positions for the extended school year. The notice shall contain the following information:

- 1) Location of position
- 2) Credential required
- 3) Hours and days of work
- 4) Salary

Unit members may apply for any available position at any time before the closing date for application, which shall not be less than ten (10) days after the posting of positions. The District shall submit all applications to the administrative agency which is responsible for conducting the extended school year program.

Criteria for Selection

The administrative agency shall select the certificated employees for extended school year program on the basis of the following criteria:

- 1) Possession of the required credential, and
- 2) Previous experience in teaching the class or grade level required by the position.

Teacher Work Day

Extended school year employees shall report for duty no later than one-half hour before class begins and shall remain on duty until one-half hour after class ends. Hours of instruction and number of instructional days shall be in accordance with appropriate state regulations. Teachers will receive one day preparation time and one four hour day at the end of the summer session with pay.

Class Size

The maximum number of students per class shall not exceed the maximum permitted by state law.

Accident and Illness Leave

Extended school year employees shall be entitled to one (1) day's absence for accident or illness with full pay prorated to the amount of time worked in the ESY program. Leave beyond one (1) day shall be without pay.

Salary

The salary for extended school year certificated unit members shall be set up at \$51.00 per hour.

Grievance Procedure

The following grievance procedure shall apply during the extended school year work period. Should there be a claim by any extended school year employee that the provisions of this Article have been violated, misinterpreted or misapplied, the employee shall meet with the Superintendent of the administrative agency in an attempt to resolve the matter. In the absence of resolution at this level, the employee may initiate action in small claims court or other court of competent jurisdiction to seek redress of the grievance.

Article XVII: Summer School

- 1. Summer School Service shall be voluntary for an employee covered by this Agreement.
- 2. Employees covered by this Agreement serving during summer shall accrue one (1) day of sick leave credit for each 20-day service period, or any major fraction thereof. The sick leave credit described herein may be accrued to the next regular school year if not utilized during this period. Further, the sick leave accrued during the regular service period shall not be utilized during the summer period.
- 3. The hours of school-based service shall be structured, directed or modified by the immediate supervisor. Additionally, employees covered by this Agreement may be required to render reasonable hours of adjunct duties directly related to their assignment including but not limited to preplanning, program evaluation, staff meetings or open house.

Selection Procedure

Selection of staff will be rotational with the District having discretion over selection in specialist areas and regular classroom assignments dependent upon the applicant pool and the availability of qualified teachers.

Article XVIII: Peer Assistance Program

1. Purpose

- 1.1 The Peer Assistance Program allows exemplary teachers to assist permanent teachers in the areas of curriculum knowledge, instructional strategies, classroom management, and data analysis.
- 1.2 The extent of the Peer Assistance Program depends on whether the participating teacher is a volunteer teacher or a teacher who has received an unsatisfactory evaluation.
- 1.3 The program shall support teachers in the following priority: first, permanent teachers with an unsatisfactory evaluation and second, voluntary teachers who have received a "2" on a recent formal evaluation.
- 1.4 Voluntary teachers may utilize the Peer Assistance Program as budget permits with pre-approval from the principal.

2. Definitions

2.1 "Participating Teacher"

A unit member with permanent status, who either volunteers or is, required to participate in the program by a recent unsatisfactory annual evaluation and assistance plan.

2.2 "Peer Assistant"

A unit member who is an exemplary teacher meeting the requirements of sub section 4.1 who is selected by the PAR panel to provide assistance to participating teacher.

2.3 "Principal or Designee"

The certificated administrator appointed by the District to evaluate a certificated teacher.

2.4 "Selection Process"

The Assistant Superintendent of Instruction is notified of a participating teacher. Two or more District teachers within the participating teacher's grade level who qualify under section 4.1 are contacted for interest in being a peer assistant. A PAR Panel is assembled to vote on the list of selected peer assistants. The approved list of teachers is provided to the participating teacher to choose the peer assistant.

2.5 "Peer Assistance Panel"

A panel will be comprised of three appointed representatives of SSDTA to include at least one member of the negotiation team, the Assistant Superintendent of Instruction, and Director of Personnel/Pupil Services in order to oversee and evaluate the program, select the peer assistant, review logs, and inform Trustees of process.

3. Program Outline

- 3.1 For Participating Teachers With An Unsatisfactory Evaluation
 - 3.1.1 Any permanent teacher with an unsatisfactory annual evaluation must participate

in the program.

- 3.1.2 The participating teacher with an unsatisfactory evaluation and the principal must review the recent unsatisfactory evaluation and the assistance plan to address the area(s) of concern.
- 3.1.3 This assistance plan shall be written, aligned with student learning, clearly stated and consistent with Education Code Section 44662. This plan shall be considered as the performance goals required in Education Code Sections 44664 (a) and 44500 (b) (2).
 - 3.1.4 The selection process (2.4) will be used to choose a peer assistant.
- 3.1.5 The principal and the peer assistant assigned to the participating teacher shall meet and discuss the recommended areas of improvement outlined in the plan and the types of assistance that should be provided to the participating teacher.
- 3.1.6 The peer assistant and the evaluating principal are expected to establish a cooperative relationship and shall coordinate and align assistance provided to the participating teacher.
- 3.1.7 The peer assistant and the participating teacher shall meet to discuss the assistance plan. After that meeting, the peer assistant will provide assistance and direction set forth in Section 4.3.
- 3.1.8 Each month, the peer assistant and participating teacher shall prepare a written report. The written log will document the teacher's participation in the program and the peer assistant's support. It will consist of dates/times used to meet, observe, collaborate, goals addressed, and a description of support provided. This log will be submitted to the principal monthly.
- 3.1.9 The District has the right to determine whether the participating teacher has been able to demonstrate satisfactory improvement.
- 3.1.10 The peer assistant may conduct at least one observation of the participating teacher with the principal.
- 3.1.11 The monthly logs, as defined in section 3.1.7 above, shall be made available to the District for placement in the participating teacher's personnel file if referenced by the principal in the annual evaluation.
 - 3.2 For Participating Teachers who have volunteered for the program
- 3.2.1 Any permanent teacher with at least one "2" on an annual evaluation may choose to participate in the Peer Assistance Program.
- 3.2.2 The participating teacher must submit a plan to the principal outlining the area(s) to be addressed with assistance. The principal may approve or not approve the plan as budget permits or based on priority of school/teacher needs.
- 3.2.3 This assistance plan shall be written, aligned with student learning, address the area in question on the annual evaluation, and be clearly stated. This plan shall be considered in

the performance objectives.

- 3.2.4 If the plan is approved, the selection process will take place to choose a peer assistant.
- 3.2.5 The principal and the peer assistant assigned to the participating teacher shall meet and discuss the recommended areas of improvement outlined in the plan and the types of assistance that should be provided to the participating teacher.
- 3.2.6 The peer assistant and the evaluating principal are expected to establish a cooperative relationship and shall coordinate and align assistance provided to the participating teacher.
- 3.2.7 The peer assistant and the participating teacher shall meet to discuss the assistance plan. After that meeting, the peer assistant will provide assistance and direction set forth in Section 4.3.
- 3.2.8 Each month, the peer assistant and participating teacher shall prepare a written report. The written log will document the teacher's participation in the program and the peer assistant's support. It will consist of dates/times used to meet, observe, collaborate, goals addressed, and a description of support provided. This log will be submitted to the principal monthly.
- 3.2.9 The District has the right to determine whether the participating teacher has been able to demonstrate satisfactory improvement.
- 3.2.10 The peer assistant may conduct at least one observation of the participating teacher with the principal.
- 3.2.11 The monthly logs, as defined in section 3.2.7 above, shall be made available to the District for placement in the participating teacher's personnel file if referenced by the principal in the annual evaluation.

4. Peer Assistant

- 4.1 Minimum qualifications for the peer assistant:
 - A credentialed tenured classroom teacher with permanent status and at least three years of recent teaching experience in the Sulphur Springs Union School District.
 - Demonstrates teaching ability through exemplary formal evaluations.
 - Possesses effective communication skills.
 - Knowledgeable and committed to District curricular goals and standards.
 - Master of a range of instructional strategies necessary to meet all students' needs.
 - Possesses and demonstrates an understanding of the California Standards for the Teaching Profession.
 - Possesses expertise in curriculum areas.
 - Possesses classroom management and organizational skills.
 - Ability to effectively teach special populations such as EL, GATE, and/or At Risk students.
 - Ability to work cooperatively, confidentially and effectively with other teachers

- and administrators.
- Demonstrates effective leadership skills.
- 4.2 The peer assistant's term will be for one school year.
- 4.3 The peer assistant's responsibilities shall include the following:
 - Provide assistance to participating teachers in areas of curriculum knowledge, instructional strategies, classroom management, and data analysis.
 - Provide consultative assistance to improve in the specific areas targeted by the assistance plan.
 - Meet and consult with the principal or designee regarding the nature of the assistance being provided.
 - Observe the participating teacher during classroom instruction.
 - Model lessons for the participating teacher.
 - Attend trainings as needed/available with participating teacher for professional growth.
 - Complete necessary logs.

5. Compensation and Release Time

- 5.1 Peer Assistant Working With A Participating Teacher With An Unsatisfactory Evaluation
- 5.1.1 The peer assistant shall receive a stipend totaling \$2000 per year made payable in two increments.
- 5.1.2 Both, the peer assistant and the participating teacher, will be provided with up to seven (7) days of release time each during the year while participating in this program.
 - 5.2 Peer Assistant Working With A Participating Teacher Who Volunteers
- 5.2.1 Up to \$2000 may be used for release days, extra duty pay, or conferences/workshops listed in the agreed upon assistance plan.

6. Other Provisions

- 6.1 Functions performed by unit members under this document shall not constitute either management or supervisory functions as defined by Government code Section 3540.1 (g) and (m).
- 6.2 Unit members who perform functions as a peer assistant under this document shall have the same protection from liability and access to appropriate defense as other public school employees pursuant to Division 3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the California Government Code.

6.3 Records

- 6.3.1 All documents and information relating to the participation in this Program will be regarded as a personnel matter and subject to the personnel record exemption of the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250, et. scq.). The annual evaluation of the Program's impact, excluding any information on identifiable individuals, shall be subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act.
- 6.3.2 All parts of the selection process for the peer assistant will be treated as confidential and will not be disclosed except as required by law.
- 6.3.3 All documents for the Peer Assistant Program will be filed by the personnel office separately from the individual personnel records except as set forth in 3.1.11 above.

Article XIX: Personnel Files

Unit members have the right to inspect personnel records pursuant to Section 1198.5 of the Labor Code. The review shall take place during normal business hours.

- 1) Information of a derogatory nature shall not be entered into a unit member's personnel file unless and until the unit member is given notice and an opportunity to review and comment on that information. The unit member may have attached to any derogatory statement his or her own comments.
- 2) The unit member shall not have the right to inspect personnel records at a time when the employee is actually required to render services to the District.

Article XX: Complaints

The Governing Board and District administration place trust in its unit members and desire to support their actions. However, in the event that a complaint is filed against a unit member, the following procedures shall be followed.

A. Presentation and Processing of Complaints

- A good faith effort shall be made to resolve a complaint at the earliest possible stage.
 The complainant shall be encouraged to communicate directly to the unit member in order to resolve concerns.
- 2. If a complainant is unable or unwilling to resolve the complaint directly with the unit member, the incident which is the basis for the complaint should be reported to the administration within 30 days of the complainant's knowledge of the incident.
- 3. The administration shall encourage the complainant to place the complaint in writing.
- 4. A written complaint shall include:

- a. The name of the complainant and the unit member involved.
- b. A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it.
- c. A specific description of any prior attempt to discuss the complaint with the unit member and the failure to resolve the matter.
- d. The complainant's desired resolution to the complaint.
- 5. In the event the complainant refuses to put his/her complaint in writing and the administration determines that the verbal complaint involves serious allegations that the District is obligated by law to investigate, the District shall meet with the unit member within thirty (30) days to get his/her account of the issues raised in the complaint.
- 6. The District administration shall thoroughly investigate the allegations in the complaint by interviewing, to the extent practical, any witnesses identified by the complainant and unit member and other appropriate individuals, collecting relevant written data and meeting with the unit member to hear the unit member's version of events.
- 7. In the event that the administration determines that the complaint appears to have substance and if the investigating administrator, the unit member, or the complainant believes that a conference between the parties may resolve the matter, the administration will attempt to arrange a conference between the unit member, the complainant and the investigating administrator.
- 8. In the event that a complainant or the unit member refuses or fails to attend the conference, the administrator shall so note in any Administrative Report.

B. Administrative Incident Reports on Complaints

- 1. When the administrator investigating the complaint determines that the allegations are substantiated, the investigating administrator shall prepare an administrative incident report and notify the unit member prior to placing that report in the unit member's personnel file. The unit member may request a meeting to discuss the report.
- 2. If the investigating administrator determines that the complaint contains untrue or unsubstantiated charges, but also contains true and substantiated charges determined by the investigation, the investigating administrator shall summarize the substantiated portions of the complaint in an administrative incident report and shall notify the unit member prior to the placement of the report in the unit member's personnel file. The unit member may request a meeting to discuss the report.

C. Post-Administrative Incident Report Procedures

- 1. If the unit member or complainant disagrees with the administrative incident report he/she may request a meeting with the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee.
- 2. If the unit member complainant is still dissatisfied after the meeting with the Superintendent or designee, either party may appeal to the Board of Trustees for a final decision.

Article XXI: Concerted Activity

The Association will not engage in strikes, work stoppage, slow down, picketing, refusal or failure to fully and faithfully perform job functions and responsibilities, nor will the Association sanction any of the above during the term of this Agreement, including compliance with the request of other labor organizations to engage in such activity. In the event of a strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or other interference with the operations of the District by employees who are represented by the Association, the Association agrees in good faith to take all necessary steps to cause those employees to cease such action. It is understood that in the event the Association violates this Agreement, the District shall be entitled to withdraw any rights, privileges or services from the Association provided for in this Agreement.

Article XXII: Conclusion Of Meeting And Negotiation

During the **term** of this Agreement, the Association expressly waives and relinquishes the right to meet and negotiate and agrees that the District shall not be obligated to meet and negotiate with respect to any subjects or matters whether referred to or covered in this Agreement or not, even though each subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both the District or the Association at the time they met and negotiated on and executed this Agreement.

Article XXIII: Term

This agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2021 up to and including June 30, 2024. This agreement shall continue in effect year by year unless one of the parties notifies the other in writing no later than May 15 of each contract year of its request to modify or amend the agreement. In the 2024-2025 contract year, all articles of the Agreement will reopen for negotiation.

Dung McDowell Negotiations Chair SSDTA

42

Assistant Superintendent

Attachment A: Recognition Agreement

RECOGNITION AGREEMENT

The District recognizes the Sulphur Springs Teachers Association CTA/NEA as the exclusive representative for the purpose of the Rodda Act, (Government Code Section 3540, et seq., Title I, Division 4, Chapter 10.7) for the employees in the representation unit comprised of the following certificated positions: full time and part time classroom teachers, special education teachers, special education teachers, and Teacher on Special Assignment; and excluding the following certificated positions: Day-to-day substitute teachers, Long-term substitute teachers, Unrepresented, School Psychologists, Educational Audiologist, Teaching Principal, Principal, Assistant Principal, Pupil Services Administrator, Program Coordinator of Special Education, Categorical Program Administrator, Director of Special Education, Director of Professional Development/Instructional Technology Categorical Support, Director of Personnel/Pupil Services, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, Assistant Superintendent of Instructional Services, Assistant Superintendent of Personnel/Pupil Services, and Superintendent.

SULPHUR SPRINGS DISTRICT TEACHERS' ASSOCIATION CTA/NEA and the Board Representative agree that this unit is appropriate as specified above and that neither party will seek a clarification or amendment of the unit either as to the specific exclusion or the enumerated inclusions during the life of this negotiated agreement provided, however, that if any new certificated positions are created, the parties shall seek mutual agreement as to either inclusion or exclusion. Should mutual agreement not be reached, either party may request clarification from the Public Employment Relations Board, solely and exclusively for the newly created certificated positions.

DATED: November 2018

Attachment B: Salary Schedules

SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

2023-24 CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE Annual Rates

Increase Effective: 7/1/23 Board Approval Date: 1/17/2024

YEARS/STEP	* * * * * *	 * * * * * *	 * * * * * *	IV * * * * * *	V *****	VI * * * * * *	YEARS/STEP
1	\$53,133	\$53,133	\$53,133	\$56,098	\$59,025	\$61,980	1
2	\$53,133	\$53,133	\$56,098	\$59,025	\$61,980	\$64,942	2
3	\$53,133	\$56,098	\$59,025	\$61,980	\$64,942	\$67,864	3
4	\$56,098	\$59,025	\$61,980	\$64,942	\$67,864	\$70,836	4
5	\$59,025	\$61,980	\$64,942	\$67,864	\$70,836	\$73,797	5
6	\$61,980	\$64,942	\$67,864	\$70,836	\$73,797	\$76,719	6
7	\$64,942	\$67,864	\$70,836	\$73,797	\$76,719	\$79,687	7
8		\$70,836	\$73,797	\$76,719	\$79,687	\$82,654	8
9		\$73,797	\$76,719	\$79,687	\$82,654	\$85,583	9
10		\$76,719	\$79,687	\$82,654	\$85,583	\$88,552	10
11			\$82,654	\$85,583	\$88,552	\$92,972	11
12			\$85,583	\$88,552	\$92,972	\$95,941	12
13			\$90,268	\$93,224	\$96,181	\$99,138	13
14			\$91,655	\$94,613	\$97,569	\$100,526	14
15			\$99,984	\$102,939	\$105,896	\$108,853	15

UNITS/REQUIREMENTS ASL:		ASL:	\$ 500.00	(\$250 paid twice annually)
		Bilingual:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
I B	A to 29 UNITS	Bilingual:Prior to 2000/2001-grandfathered	\$ 4,500.00	(\$2250 paid twice annually)
II B	A + 30 or MA	Combination Classes:	\$ 1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
III B	A + 45 or MA + 15	Combination Classes:	\$ 200.00	materials
IV BA	A + 60 or MA + 30	Committee Service/Extra Duty Pay:	\$ 48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
V BA	A + 75 or MA + 45	Curriculum Coordinator:	\$ 1,700.00	(\$850 paid twice annually)
VI BA	A + 90 or MA + 60	Home Teaching:	\$ 48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
		Master Bonus:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$125 paid monthly)
		On Site Mentors:	\$ 500.00	(\$250 paid twice annually)
		Peer Assistant:	\$ 2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		SDC/APE	\$ 1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
		Severe Sp Ed:	\$ 2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		Speech:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
		Summer School/Extended Year:	\$ 51.00	(Beginning Summer 2023)
		Teacher Mentor:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
		Induction Mentor:	\$ 2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		Lead Mentor Stipend:	\$ 1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)

024/SCH E(12)

SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

2023-24 CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE

Increase Effective: 7/1/23 Board Approval Date: 1/17/2024 12 Paychecks 024/SCH E(12)

YEARS/STEP	1	II	III	IV	V	VI	YEARS/STEP
* * * * * *	* * * * * *	* * * * * *	* * * * * *	* * * * * *	* * * * * *	* * * * * *	* * * * * *
1	\$4,427.75	\$4,427.75	\$4,427.75	\$4,674.83	\$4,918.75	\$5,165.00	1
2	\$4,427.75	\$4,427.75	\$4,674.83	\$4,918.75	\$5,165.00	\$5,411.83	2
3	\$4,427.75	\$4,674.83	\$4,918.75	\$5,165.00	\$5,411.83	\$5,655.33	3
4	\$4,674.83	\$4,918.75	\$5,165.00	\$5,411.83	\$5,655.33	\$5,903.00	4
5	\$4,918.75	\$5,165.00	\$5,411.83	\$5,655.33	\$5,903.00	\$6,149.75	5
6	\$5,165.00	\$5,411.83	\$5,655.33	\$5,903.00	\$6,149.75	\$6,393.25	6
7	\$5,411.83	\$5,655.33	\$5,903.00	\$6,149.75	\$6,393.25	\$6,640.58	7
8		\$5,903.00	\$6,149.75	\$6,393.25	\$6,640.58	\$6,887.83	8
9		\$6,149.75	\$6,393.25	\$6,640.58	\$6,887.83	\$7,131.92	9
10		\$6,393.25	\$6,640.58	\$6,887.83	\$7,131.92	\$7,379.33	10
11			\$6,887.83	\$7,131.92	\$7,379.33	\$7,747.67	11
12			\$7,131.92	\$7,379.33	\$7,747.67	\$7,995.08	12
13			\$7,522.33	\$7,768.67	\$8,015.08	\$8,261.50	13
14			\$7,637.92	\$7,884.42	\$8,130.75	\$8,377.17	14
15			\$8,332.00	\$8,578.25	\$8,824.67	\$9,071.08	15

UNITS/REQUIREMENTS ASL:		ASL:	\$ 500.00	(\$250 paid twice annually)
		Bilingual:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
I	BA to 29 UNITS	Bilingual:Prior to 2000/2001-grandfathered	\$ 4,500.00	(\$2250 paid twice annually)
Ш	BA + 30 or MA	Combination Classes:	\$ 1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
Ш	BA + 45 or MA + 15	Combination Classes:	\$ 200.00	materials
IV	BA + 60 or MA + 30	Committee Service/Extra Duty Pay:	\$ 48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
V	BA + 75 or MA + 45	Curriculum Coordinator:	\$ 1,700.00	(\$850 paid twice annually)
VI	BA + 90 or MA + 60	Home Teaching:	\$ 48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
		Master Bonus:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$125 paid monthly)
		On Site Mentor:	\$ 500.00	(\$250 paid twice annually)
		Peer Assistant:	\$ 2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		SDC/APE	\$ 1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
		Severe Sp Ed:	\$ 2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		Speech:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
		Summer School/Extended Year:	\$ 51.00	(Beginning Summer 2023)
		Teacher Mentor:	\$ 1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
		Induction Mentor:	\$ 2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		Lead Mentor Stipend:	\$ 1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)

Attachment B: Salary Schedules

SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

2023-24 LANGUAGE - SPEECH SPECIALIST Annual Rates 024/SCH L(12)

Increase Effective: 07/01/23 Board Approval Date: 1/17/2024

YEARS/STEP *****	 * * * * * * *	 *****	 * * * * * * *	IV * * * * * *	V *****	VI * * * * * *	YEARS/STEP * * * * * * *
Intern 1	\$56,866	\$56,866	\$56,866	\$60,042	\$63,171	\$66,336	Intern 1
Intern 2	\$56,866	\$56,866	\$60,042	\$63,171	\$66,336	\$69,505	Intern 2
Intern 3	\$56,866	\$60,042	\$63,171	\$66,336	\$69,505	\$72,634	Intern 3
1		\$82,111	\$85,284	\$88,463	\$91,596	\$94,774	1
2			\$88,463	\$91,596	\$94,774	\$99,504	2
3			\$91,596	\$94,774	\$99,504	\$102,683	3
4			\$97,126	\$100,003	\$102,879	\$105,757	4
5			\$98,476	\$101,353	\$104,230	\$107,107	5
6			\$99,827	\$102,703	\$105,580	\$108,457	6
7			\$101,176	\$104,054	\$106,930	\$109,808	7
8			\$102,527	\$105,403	\$108,281	\$111,158	8
9			\$103,879	\$106,754	\$109,631	\$112,508	9
10-12			\$105,228	\$108,106	\$110,981	\$113,858	10-12
13-15			\$106,578	\$109,455	\$112,333	\$115,209	13-15

UNITS/REQUIREMENTS		ASL: Bilingual:	\$ \$	500.00 1,500.00	(\$250 paid twice annually) (\$750 paid twice annually)
1	BA to 29 UNITS	Bilingual:Prior to 2000/2001-grandfathered	\$	4,500.00	(\$2250 paid twice annually)
П	BA + 30 or MA	Combination Classes:	\$	1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
Ш	BA + 45 or MA + 15	Combination Classes:	\$	200.00	materials
IV	BA + 60 or MA + 30	Committee Service/Extra Duty Pay:	\$	48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
V	BA + 75 or MA + 45	Curriculum Coordinator:	\$	1,700.00	(\$850 paid twice annually)
VI	BA + 90 or MA + 60	Home Teaching:	\$	48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
		Master Bonus:	\$	1,500.00	(\$125 paid monthly)
		On Site Mentors:	\$	500.00	(\$250 paid twice annually)
		Peer Assistant:	\$	2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		SDC/APE	\$	1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
		Severe Sp Ed:	\$	2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		Speech:	\$	1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
		Summer School/Extended Year:	\$	51.00	(Beginning Summer 2023)
		Teacher Mentor:	\$	1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
		Induction Mentor:	\$	2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
		Lead Mentor Stipend:	\$	1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)

Intern 1, 2, and 3 steps are for Speech Language Pathologists who are working under a waiver or permit. Placement on Step 1 or above is reserved for Speech Language Pathologists who hold a preliminary or clear credential authorizing speech language pathology services in the state of California. Years worked as an intern will be counted toward years of service. SSUSD accepts unlimited years of service for newly hired Speech Language Pathologists.

SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

2023-24 LANGUAGE - SPEECH SPECIALIST

CERTIFICATED SALARY SCHEDULE

Increase Effective: 07/01/23 Board Approval Date: 1/17/2024

12 Paychecks	024/SCH L(12)
--------------	---------------

YEARS/STEP * * * * * * *	 *****	 *****	 * * * * * * *	IV * * * * * *	V *****	VI * * * * * *	YEARS/STEP * * * * * * *
Intern 1	\$4,738.83	\$4,738.83	\$4,738.83	\$5,003.50	\$5,264.25	\$5,528.00	Intern 1
Intern 2	\$4,738.83	\$4,738.83	\$5,003.50	\$5,264.25	\$5,528.00	\$5,792.08	Intern 2
Intern 3	\$4,738.83	\$5,003.50	\$5,264.25	\$5,528.00	\$5,792.08	\$6,052.83	Intern 3
1		\$6,842.58	\$7,107.00	\$7,371.92	\$7,633.00	\$7,897.83	1
2			\$7,371.92	\$7,633.00	\$7,897.83	\$8,292.00	2
3			\$7,633.00	\$7,897.83	\$8,292.00	\$8,556.92	3
4			\$8,093.83	\$8,333.58	\$8,573.25	\$8,813.08	4
5			\$8,206.33	\$8,446.08	\$8,685.83	\$8,925.58	5
6			\$8,318.92	\$8,558.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,038.08	6
7			\$8,431.33	\$8,671.17	\$8,910.83	\$9,150.67	7
8			\$8,543.92	\$8,783.58	\$9,023.42	\$9,263.17	8
9			\$8,656.58	\$8,896.17	\$9,135.92	\$9,375.67	9
10-12			\$8,769.00	\$9,008.83	\$9,248.42	\$9,488.17	10-12
13-15			\$8,881.50	\$9,121.25	\$9,361.08	\$9,600.75	13-15

LINUTO/DEOLUDEMENTO	4.01	•	500.00	(0050 :14 : 11)
UNITS/REQUIREMENTS ASL:		\$	500.00	(+
	Bilingual:	\$	1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
I BA to 29 UNITS	Bilingual:Prior to 2000/2001-grandfathered	\$	4,500.00	(\$2250 paid twice annually)
II BA + 30 or MA	Combination Classes:	\$	1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
III BA + 45 or MA + 15	Combination Classes:	\$	200.00	materials
IV BA + 60 or MA + 30	Committee Service/Extra Duty Pay:	\$	48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
V BA + 75 or MA + 45	Curriculum Coordinator:	\$	1,700.00	(\$850 paid twice annually)
VI BA + 90 or MA + 60	Home Teaching:	\$	48.00	(Beginning1/26/24)
	Master Bonus:	\$	1,500.00	(\$125 paid monthly)
	On Site Mentor:	\$	500.00	(\$250 paid twice annually)
	Peer Assistant:	\$	2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
	SDC/APE	\$	1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)
	Severe Sp Ed:	\$	2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
	Speech:	\$	1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
	Summer School/Extended Year:	\$	51.00	(Beginning Summer 2023)
	Teacher Mentor:	\$	1,500.00	(\$750 paid twice annually)
	Induction Mentor:	\$	2,000.00	(\$1000 paid twice annually)
	Lead Mentor Stipend:	\$	1,000.00	(\$500 paid twice annually)

Intern 1, 2, and 3 steps are for Speech Language Pathologists who are working under a waiver or permit. Placement on Step 1 or above is reserved for Speech Language Pathologists who hold a preliminary or clear credential authorizing speech language pathology services in the state of California. Years worked as an intern will be counted toward years of service. SSUSD accepts unlimited years of service for newly hired Speech Language Pathologists.

Attachment C: Voluntary Benefits

The following are voluntary programs and are paid entirely by the employee through tenthly payroll deductions. You can enroll or terminate coverage in most programs at any time. However, there are a few programs that are IRS regulated so enrollment/termination can only occur during open enrollment or in the case of a qualifying event. These IRS regulated programs include the Section 125 plan, cancer policy, and pre-tax life and accident insurance, all offered through American Fidelity.

Supplemental Life / AD&D / Cancer Insurance Plans

The employee may purchase supplemental group term life, accidental death and dismemberment and cancer insurance for self, spouse, and dependents. See individual carrier brochures for details. Premium is normally based on age of insured and insurance amount.

Supplemental Disability Insurance

The employee may purchase an income protection policy that would supplement the employee's income in the event of loss wages due to a disability. For more information, employee should contact carriers directly. Carrier information may be obtained from Payroll & Benefits Office.

Section 125

Section 125 is an IRS program that allows the employee to define pre-tax deductions for out of pocket costs related to health/welfare and day care expenses. An appointment can be scheduled with the program administrator through the Benefits Department to discuss the Section 125 plan and other benefits that may be offered with this program. Enrollment occurs once a year, during open enrollment only or at initial hiring. Annual limits for Dependent Care and Medical Reimbursement are set by the IRS. The plan year is from September 1, through August 31.

403 (B)/TSA (Tax Sheltered Annuities)

The employee may enroll in an IRS-regulated supplemental retirement plan by starting a 403(B)/TSA account. This allows the employee to defer taxes through salary reduction contributions. Program information and forms are available through the District's TPA (Third Party Administrator), Schools First Federal Credit Union, at (800) 462-8328 X4727 or their web site at www.schoolsfirstfcu.org.

Credit Union

There are three credit unions to choose from: First City, First Financial, and Schools First. If interested, employees should contact credit unions directly for information regarding their specific program. Enrollment forms are available through the Payroll & Benefits Office.

Pre-Paid Legal/Identity Theft Plan

The employee can enroll in the Pre-Paid Legal/Identity Theft Plan administered by Legal Shield. For more information on the program, employees should call Kandra King at (310) 466-6436.

Colonial Medical Bridge Plan

This plan helps provide a lump-sum benefit for a covered hospital confinement and a covered outpatient surgery to assist with costs that your medical plan may not cover. It pays one hospital confinement benefit per covered person per year. Coverage is available for you, your spouse and your dependent children.

Attachment F: MOU Job Sharing

Memorandum of Understanding Between the Sulphur Springs Union School District and the Sulphur Springs District Teachers Association CONCERNING JOB SHARING

The Sulphur Springs Union School District (SSUSD) and the Sulphur Springs District Teachers Association (SSDTA) agree to revise following procedures to pilot job share programs begun in the 1997/98 school year. This arrangement shall be for one year only and shall not be subject to the contractual grievance procedure related to this Memorandum of Understanding.

A. Number of Teams:

The District may authorize up to four (4) teacher teams at any school site with a student population of greater than 650 and two (2) teacher teams for sites less than 650 to share a full-time teaching assignment under the following terms and conditions. There will be a pool of four (4) positions available to schools in need of additional job sharing teams. No school shall have more than seven (7) job sharing teams.

B. Definitions:

- 1. Shared teaching assignments shall refer to two (2) teachers sharing one (1) full-time position. This shared assignment shall be for one year.
 - 2. Shared teaching assignments must consist of at least one tenured teacher.
- 3. The working calendar of a shared assignment consists of 180 student days and 6 non-student days. The 180 student days shall be divided according to the working percentage agreed upon in the approved calendar. Both team members are required to work all 6 non-student days. Compensation for teachers for these non-student days is included in their salary percentage.

C. Procedures:

Shared teaching assignments will be filled only by teachers who have submitted a written proposal for shared teaching to the Superintendent or designee. The proposal must be received on or before April 1, prior to the year in which the shared teaching assignment will be requested. The proposal may be submitted simultaneously with a request for a year of unpaid leave, and neither request will prejudice the other. If one request is denied, the other will still be considered. Both teachers will be informed of the status of their proposal by June 1. Should one of the teachers in the job-share arrangement not be able to complete this year, the position will be assigned to a teacher on a rehire list or the vacancy will be posted. Should a suitable replacement not be found, the District may require the remaining partner to return to full-time teaching to fulfill the obligation that the two job-share teachers had agreed to provide. When a job-share agreement terminates, the two teachers may agree, with the approval of the principal, that one of them will assume the class assignment that they have been job sharing and the other shall take a voluntary transfer/reassignment.

D. Hours:

- 1. Both team members are required to work the one pre-service days required of full-time teachers. Teacher's pay for these pre-service days is included in their annual salary.
- 2. Both team members are required to work all regularly scheduled parent conference days. Pay for teachers on the two non-student parent conference days is included in their annual salary.
- 3. Both team members are required to work back to school night and open house with no compensation on the dates established by their school.
- 4. Both team members are required to divide other responsibilities associated with the teaching assignment, which occur outside of the regular workday subject to the approval of the principal. The percentage of the student instructional year (i.e., 180 days) that each team member will be responsible for must be contained within his or her proposal.
- 5. Both team members will be responsible for sharing all information pertaining to their mutual assignments including information from the staff meetings, and in-services.
- 6. Upon reasonable notice to the job sharing team, the principal may require up to two (2) additional days of service from each team member to be paid at the member's per diem rate.
- 7. Both team members must meet with the principal prior to June 1 to review the responsibilities of the assignment, and again prior to the opening of school to establish the exact working days and receive directions regarding attendance at staff and team meetings.
 - 8. Both team members shall prepare report cards.
- 9. Both team members shall attend the three Professional Development Days. Teacher's pay for these three PDD days is included in their annual salary.

The working calendar must be approved by the principal prior to the opening of school. No later than February 1st, a parent survey of satisfaction will be conducted. The survey is to be developed by the job share team with approval of the principal.

E. Salary Schedule, Placement and Credit:

- 1. Unit members will receive the percentage identified in their proposal of their annual salary.
- 2. Unit members of the shared assignment will receive one year's credit on the teacher's salary schedule if they complete seventy-five percent (75%) of their work year in that assignment.

F. Retirement:

Both unit members will receive the same percentage proposed of a year's credit toward the State Teachers Retirement System.

G. Seniority List:

Both unit members will maintain their place on the District seniority list.

H. Health and Welfare Benefits and Leaves:

1. Each unit member in the shared teaching assignment is entitled to the benefits package as defined in Article VI of the master agreement. In no case will a shared teaching assignment

exceed the equivalent of benefits assigned for one FTE. The shared plan must include how these benefits will be addressed between the partners.

2. Leave provisions shall be prorated for unit members.

I. Renewal:

The District reserves the sole right to review the effectiveness of the shared positions, and to determine whether or not to continue them on a year-to-year basis. A unit member on a shared teaching assignment must notify the District by March 1st or the last working day prior to March 1st if he or she wishes to reapply for a similar shared teaching assignment for the upcoming school year.

J. Criteria:

The District will use the following criteria in consideration of job sharing requests:

- 1. Quality of previous service to the District.
- 2. Compatibility of teaching styles of the team members, as determined by the District.
- 3. The impact of the potential shared teaching assignment upon the school involved.
- 4. The needs and efficient operation of the District.
- 5. Unit member's additional credentials, tenure and competency.
- 6. Primary applicant must be tenured to apply for a shared teaching position.

Attachment G: MOU Job Sharing

Memorandum of Understanding Between the Sulphur Springs Union School District and the Sulphur Springs District Teachers Association CONCERNING JOB SHARING

The Sulphur Springs Union School District (SSUSD) and the Sulphur Springs District Teachers Association (SSDTA) agree to the following procedures concerning job sharing. This agreement shall not be subject to the contractual grievance procedure related to this Memorandum of Understanding. Permanent teachers working in a job share arrangement during the 2013-2014 school will not be affected by the new guidelines of this MOU. They will continue to work under ATTACHMENT F of the Master Contract Agreement dated February 2012 until the end of their 2013-2014 job share arrangement.

A. Number of Teams:

The District may authorize up to four (2) teacher teams at any school site.

B. Definitions:

- Shared teaching assignments shall refer to one tenured teacher requesting a 40% leave of absence and a 40% temporary teacher sharing one (1) full-time position.
 The tenured teacher requesting this leave of absence for a job share assignment must work 60% of the school year. This leave of absence and shared assignment shall be for one year.
- 2. Shared teaching requests for 40% Leave of Absence can only be made by a tenured teacher.
- 3. The working calendar of a shared assignment consists of 180 student days and 6 non-student days. The 180 student days shall be divided according to the working percentage agreed upon in the approved calendar. Both team members are required to work all 6 non-student days. Compensation for teachers for these non-student days is included in their salary percentage.
- 4. The tenured teacher on Leave of Absence must work Tuesdays for planning purposes.
- 5. If the site or the District hold Professional Training on a scheduled non-work day, both team members are required to attend the trainings and will be compensated for days if they are not part of the employees' salary already.

C. Procedures:

Shared teaching assignments will be filled only by teachers who have submitted a written proposal for shared teaching to the Superintendent or designee along with a 40% Leave of Absence Request. The proposal and request for leave must be received on or before April 1, prior to the year in which the shared teaching assignment will be requested. The proposal may be submitted simultaneously with a request for a year of unpaid leave, and neither request will prejudice the other. If one request is denied, the other will still be considered. The teachers will be informed of the status of their proposal by June 1.

D. Hours:

- Both team members are required to work the one pre-service day required of full-time teachers. Teacher's pay for this pre-service day is included in their annual salary.
- Both team members are required to work all regularly scheduled parent conference days. Pay for teachers on the two non-student parent conference days is included in their annual salary.
- 3. Both team members are required to work back to school night and open house with no compensation on the dates established by their school.
- 4. Both team members are required to divide other responsibilities associated with the teaching assignment, which occur outside of the regular workday subject to the approval of the principal. The percentage of the student instructional year (i.e., 180 days) that each team member will be responsible for must be contained within his or her proposal.
- 5. Both team members will be responsible for sharing all information pertaining to their mutual assignments including information from the staff meetings, and in-services.
- 6. Upon reasonable notice to the job sharing team, the principal may require up to two (2) additional days of service from each team member to be paid at the member's per diem rate.
- 7. Both team members must meet with the principal to review the responsibilities of the assignment prior to the opening of school to establish the exact working days and receive directions regarding attendance at staff and team meetings. The tenured teacher requesting the Leave of Absence must be scheduled to work Tuesdays within their work year.
- 8. Both team members shall prepare report cards.
- 9. Both team members shall attend the three Professional Development Days. Teacher's pay for these three PDD days is included in their annual salary. The working calendar must be approved by the principal prior to the opening of school. No later than February 1st, a parent survey of satisfaction will be conducted. The survey is to be developed by the job share team with approval of the principal.

E. Salary Schedule, Placement and Credit:

- 1. Unit members will receive the percentage identified in their proposal of their annual salary.
- Unit members of the shared assignment will receive one year's credit on the teacher salary schedule if they complete seventy-five percent (75%) of their work year in that assignment.

F. Retirement:

Unit member will receive the same percentage proposed of a year's credit toward the State Teachers Retirement System.

G. Seniority List:

Unit members will maintain their place on the District seniority list.

H. Health and Welfare Benefits and Leaves:

- The tenured teacher working the 60% assignment will receive the health and welfare benefit package. Each unit member in the shared teaching assignment is entitled to the benefits package as defined in Article VI of the master agreement. In no case will a shared teaching assignment exceed the equivalent of benefits assigned for one FTE.
- 2. Leave provisions shall be prorated for unit member.

I. Renewal:

The District reserves the sole right to review the effectiveness of the shared positions. A unit member on a requested leave of absence in a shared teaching assignment must notify the District by March 1st or the last working day prior to March 1st if he or she wishes to reapply for another 40% leave of absence for the upcoming school year. A unit member is limited to 4 years of shared assignments during their employment with the Sulphur Springs School District.

J. Criteria:

The District will use the following criteria in consideration of job sharing requests:

- 1. Quality of previous service to the District.
- 2. Compatibility of teaching styles of the team members, as determined by the District.
- 3. The impact of the potential shared teaching assignment upon the school involved.
- 4. The needs and efficient operation of the District.
- 5. Unit member's additional credentials, tenure and competency.
- 6. Applicant must be tenured to apply for a shared teaching position.

MOU: Moderate/Severe Special Education Teachers

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND THE SULPHUR SPRING TEACHERS ASSOCIATION REGARDING MODERATE/SEVERE SPECIAL EDUCATION TEACHERS

In order to recruit and retain highly qualified Special Day Class Teachers for moderate to severe classrooms (e.g. ACE, Intensive Autism, Regional Multiple Disabilities), the following signing bonus will be put into place for any teacher who is newly hired for the 2024-25 school year. This Memorandum of Understanding will only apply to the position of Moderate/Severe Special Day Class Teacher, and only to employees hired after the ratification of this Memorandum of Understanding.

Signing Bonus:

Acceptance of this position comes with a \$8,000 signing bonus. The signing bonus will be paid in two installments of \$4,000 each on the second pay date of August of the first two years of employment. This signing bonus only applies to employees who hold a Preliminary or Clear California Credential that permits the employee to teach in a Moderate/Severe assignment.

For positions less than 100%, the signing bonus will be prorated in relation to the percentage of the position. If the employee should leave the employment of the district, either voluntarily or involuntarily, during the first two school years of employment, repayment of the signing bonus will be required in accordance with the following schedule:

Period of Time Employed	Repayment Percentage
After One Month	90%
After Two Months	80%
After Three Months	70%
After Four Months	60%
After Five Months or more	50%

- This Memorandum of Understanding shall expire of its own accord on June 30, 2025.
- This Memorandum of Understanding shall not affect any other provision of the parties' collective bargaining agreement.

This Memorandum of Understanding shall not establish a precedent for any other school year or modification
of the Agreement.

Dated: 5-9-24

Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Assistant Superintendent

Sulphur Springs Union School District

Dated: 5-9-24

Dung McDowell, Bargaining Chair

Sulphur Springs District Teachers Association

MOU: Learning Support Teachers 2024/2025

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

SULPHUR SPRINGS DISTRICT TEACHERS ASSOCIATION REGARDING LEARNING SUPPORT TEACHERS DURING THE 2024-2025 SCHOOL YEAR

The Sulphur Springs Union School District ("District") and the Sulphur Springs District Teacher Association ("Association", collectively "Parties") enter into this Memorandum of Understandin ("MOU") regarding Learning Support Teachers for the 2024-2025 school year.

The Parties agree as follows:

- For the 2024-2025 school year, the District will continue to staff "Learning Support
 Teacher" ("LST") positions, funded from one-time monies. The District reserves the right
 to end or continue the LST positions at the conclusion of the 2024-2025 school year.
- Bargaining unit members selected for the LST position agree to serve in the LST position for the entire school year.
- 3) The District will use LSTs for substitute teaching no more than 3 times per month, and only after all substitute teachers who have accepted jobs for the day have been placed and there are still uncovered classrooms. LSTs will substitute teach at their assigned sites during their regular contractual hours. As used herein, "time" refers to coverage that cancels the LST's predetermined schedule for an intervention group. LSTs covering classes as part of a coaching model, or to assist in teacher training will not count as substitute teaching and will not count toward the monthly limit.
- LSTs will receive training in the District's instructional coaching model.
- LSTs will not evaluate teacher performance for district evaluation purposes.
- At the conclusion of the 2024-2025 school year, LSTs who do not wish to continue as an LST for the 2025-2026 school year will be assured that they will return to the school site to which they were assigned the year prior to becoming an LST. The District will make a good faith effort to return the teachers to their grade level held the year prior to becoming an LST.
- It is understood that LSTs will still be considered TK-6th grade teachers for salary schedule and contract purposes.
- 8) Each Learning Support Teacher will receive a stipend of \$1,000 for the year. This stipend will be prorated should an LST not serve the entire school year in the LST position.
- The Parties agree that if the District discontinues the LST positions at the end of the 2024-2025 school year, this MOU addresses all negotiated impacts and no further negotiations shall be required.

This Memorandum of Understanding shall expire in full without precedent on June 13, 2025, unless extended by mutual written agreement.

For the District:

Dr. Jay Greenlinger

Assistant Superintendent

Sulphur Springs Union School District

For SSDTA:

Dung McDowell Bargaining Chair

Sulphur Springs District Teachers Assn.

MOU: Scholars at Home 2024/2025

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN SULPHUR SPRINGS UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND

SULPHUR SPRINGS DISTRICT TEACHERS ASSOCIATION Scholars@Home 2024-25

It is agreed in this Memorandum of Understanding that Scholars@Home students refers to students who have enrolled in the Scholars@Home program at Mint Canyon Community School.

- Scholars@Home (S@H) teachers will report to the Mint Canyon site principal for all S@H concerns.
- Scholars@Home teachers will teach live for a minimum of four hours per day, inclusive
 of a minimum of one hour of whole group instruction so that each student receives a
 minimum of one hour of live instruction from the teacher-
- S@H teachers will submit a schedule that includes Language Arts, Math, Social Studies, Science, English Language Development and the state required Physical Education minutes.
- S@H teachers' office hours will be a minimum of one hour daily.
- Mild/Moderate and Moderate/Severe Teachers who choose to support Scholars@Home students, in addition to their rostered in-person class, will receive extra duty for each hour of live instruction provided beyond their contractual day and 2 hours of extra duty per student per week for preparation.

All components of the current Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Association and District not addressed by the terms of this agreement shall remain in full effect. This agreement is non-precedent setting.

This MOU shall expire in full without precedent on June 30, 2025, unless extended by mutual written agreement.

For the Association

Date: 5-14-2024

For the District

Date: May 14, 2024